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NOTICE OF THE 21° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 21" Annual General Meeting (‘“AGM”) of the Members of Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited will be held on
Tuesday, 27" September, 2022, at 4:00 PM through Two- way Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact
the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (both Standalone and Consolidated) for the Financial
Year ended 31° March, 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the Financial Year ended 31*
March, 2022 and other statements attached thereto along with the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
(CAG) thereon and in this connection to pass the following Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (both Standalone and Consolidated) for the Financial Year ended
31" March, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2022
and other statements attached thereto along with the Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India thereon, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

2. To declared dividend for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2022 and, in this connection, to pass the following Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the recommendation of the Board of Directors, dividend at the rate of Rs.30.00/- (Rupees Thirty
only) per Equity Share [of the paid up value of Rs.10/- each] for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2022, be and is hereby declared on
22197269 Equity Shares of the Company and the same be paid out of the profits of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31* March,
2022

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sandip Das (DIN 08217697), a Director who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
him self forre-appointment and in this connection to pass the following Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Sandip Das (DIN 08217697), a Director retiring by rotation, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the
Company whose period of office shall be subject to retirement by rotation.”

4. To fix remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 and in this connection to pass the following
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors be and is
hereby authorized to determine the amount of remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors as and when appointed under Section
139(5) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India including
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, if any, incurred by the said Auditors in connection with the audit of Annual Accounts of the
Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

The Special Business as appearing below, is considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, the Members are requested
to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolution:

5. Appointment of Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166) as Government Nominee Director and fixation of terms of
appointment:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166), who was appointed as an Additional Director as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and allied Rules by the Board of Directors with effect from 1* July, 2022 and who holds office up to
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and the Company having received a notice in writing from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, consent be and is hereby accorded for his appointment as a Government Nominee Director of the
Company for a period of 3 years on co-terminus basis or until further orders of the Administrative Ministry, whichever is earlier and his
office shall be subject to retirement by rotation on such other terms and conditions as contained in letter No.CA-31032/1/2021-PNG-
37493 dated 14" June, 2022received from the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, (MoPNG), Government of India.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board of Directors
21, Netaji Subhas Road Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.
Kolkata 700 001 Abhishek Lahoti

Company Secretary
Date: 12" August, 2022 ACS 25141

Place: Kolkata
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Annual General Meeting shall be held through video conferencing or other audio-visual means:

In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a new norm to be followed. As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”)
General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5" May, 2020 read with General Circular No.02/2021 dated 13" January, 2021, General Circular No.
19/2021 dated 8" December, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14" December, 2021 and General Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5"
May, 2022 (“the MCA Circulars”), this Annual General Meeting (AGM) is scheduled to be held through VC/OAVM and voting for items to be
transacted in the Notice to this AGM shall be only through remote electronic voting process or electronic voting during the AGM. Hence,
physical attendance of the Members is not required at the venue of the 21 AGM.

Further, as per the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13" May, 2022 (referred to as “the
SEBI Circular’), relaxation has been extended upto 31* December, 2022 from Regulation 36(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”) which requires sending hard copy of annual report containing salient
features of all the documents prescribed in Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the shareholders who have not registered their
email addresses. The Notice calling the AGM and the Annual Report shall be uploaded on the website of the Company. The Notice shall
be accessible on the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Ltd. at www.bseindia.com and Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited at
www.cse-india.com and the Notice of AGM shall also be available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the e-Voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The cut-off date for ascertaining the Members who would be entitled to cast their vote electronically is Tuesday, 20" September, 2022 (end
ofday).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. However, as per SEBI Circular and the MCA
Circulars, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the Members is not available for this AGM as AGM is being held through
VC/OAVM, and the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the
Members will not be available for the 21* AGM and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

The Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and
cast their votes through e-voting as per the MCA Circulars. Pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, corporate
Members are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution to the Scrutinizer by email at csbinita.tca@gamail.com with a copy
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in , authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Members can join the AGM through VC/OAVM 45 minutes before the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by
following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available on first
come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of
first come first serve basis.

The recorded transcript of the forthcoming AGM scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 27" September, 2022, shall also be made available on
the website of the Company www.blinv.com, as soon as possible after the Meeting is concluded.

Those Members who register themselves as speaker will only be allowed to express views/ask questions during the AGM. Members who
would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request from
their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at
lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com on or before Thursday, 22™ September, 2022 (end of day).

Members seeking any information with regard to any items provided in the AGM Notice including the Annual Accountsand any queries
relating to the business/operations of the Company, are requested to write to the Company mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID
number/folio number, PAN and mobile number, on or before Thursday, 22™ September, 2022 (end of day) at lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com
and responses to such queries will be appropriately addressed by the Chairman of the meeting. Due to technical reasons, the length of a
question may possibly be limited to a certain number of characters. However, the number of questions a Member or its authorized
representative can submit will not be affected thereby. The Management, at its due discretion, will decide, whether and how it will answer
the questions. It can summarize questions and select, in the interest of the other Members, meaningful questions.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in address or
demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time to time.

Interms of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, though the Statutory Auditors of a Government
Company are appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors is fixed at the General
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Meeting or in such manner as may be determined therein. Therefore, item on fixation of remuneration of the Statutory Auditors has been
included in the Notice of the 21* AGM under item no. 4 of the Ordinary Business which requires passing of Resolution by simple majority.

As per the provisions of Clause 3.A.l1. of the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5" May, 2020 read with Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13"
January, 2021, General Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8" December, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14" December, 2021 and
General Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5" May, 2022 of MCA, the matter of Special Business as appearing at ltem No. 5 of the accompanying
Notice is considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, forms part of this Notice.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is relating to the Special Business in respect of ltem
No. 5to be transacted at the AGM of the Company is annexed hereto. All documents referred in the notice of the AGM and the explanatory
statement including Statutory Registers shall be available electronically for inspection by the Members during AGM upon Login-into
NSDL e-voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Brief particulars of the Directors, proposed to be re-appointed / appointed, as mandated under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in terms of Para 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-
2), is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the
Company shall be entitled to vote at the AGM. Several executors or administrators of a deceased Member in whose name any share is
registered shall for the purpose of Article 84 of Articles of Association of the Company, be deemed to be Members registered jointly in
respect thereof.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30" May, 2022, has recommended a dividend of Rs.30.00 (Rupees Thirty only) per Equity
Share of the paid up value of Rs.10/- each, fully paid-up. Upon declaration by the Members at the AGM, dividend shall be paid subject to
deduction of income tax at source wherever applicable, to those Members of the Company who are holding shares of the Company as on
Tuesday, 20" September, 2022 (End of Day) within the statutory time limit of 30 days from the date of such declaration.

Instructions on Tax Deductible at Source on Dividend:

18.

As per provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended by and read with the provisions of the Finance Act, 2020, with effect from
1% April, 2020, dividend declared and paid by the Company is taxable in the hands of shareholders and the Company is required to deduct
tax at source (TDS) from dividend paid to the shareholders at the applicable rates specified u/s 194 of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

For Resident Shareholders:

A

Where, the Permanent Account Number (PAN) is available and is valid:

i. Tax shall be deducted at source in accordance with the provisions of Section 194 the IncomeTax Act, 1961 at 10% (subject to
change) on the amount of dividend payable.

ii. Notaxshallbe deductedinthe case of aresidentindividual shareholder, if:
a. the amountof such dividend in aggregate paid or likely to be paid during the Financial Year does not exceed Rs. 5,000; OR

b. the shareholder provides duly signed Form 15G or Form 15H (as applicable) not later than Friday, 16" September, 2022, (end of
day) to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company, provided that all the prescribed eligibility conditions are met.

Where the PAN is either not available or is invalid, tax shall be deducted at the prescribed rate or at a rate of 20% (subject to change),
whichever is higher as per section 206 AA of Income TaxAct 1961.

Shareholders may also submit any other documents to Company’s registrar and share transfer agent C B Management Services Private
Limited as prescribed under the Income TaxAct, 1961 to claim a lower / Nil withholding tax.

Please note that as per Section 206AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 the tax shall be deductible at the higher rates prescribed under the
provision if the following conditions are satisfied:

» Deductee (shareholder) has not filed the return ofincome for both F.Y. 2020-21 and F.Y. 2021-22.
» The due date tofile such return ofincome, as prescribed under Section 139, has expired; and
» Theaggregate amount of tax deducted and collected at source is Rs. 50,000 or more in each of these 2 previous years.

Also, shareholders who are required to link their Aadhaar number with their PAN in terms of the provisions of Section 139AA (2) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 itis advisable to link their PAN with Aadhaar in order to avoid higher rate of TDS.
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So, TDS Rates applicable to Resident Shareholder: -

Shareholders having valid PAN 10% or as notified by the Government of India

Shareholders not having PAN / valid PAN / PAN 20% or as notified by the Government of India
not linked with Aadhaar, as applicable

Shareholder considered as a specified person in 20% or as notified by the Government of India
terms term of section 206AB

The Resident Non-Individual Members i.e., Insurance companies, Mutual Funds and Alternative Investment Fund (AIF) established in
India and Non-Resident Non-Individual Members i.e., Foreign Institutional Investors and Foreign Portfolio Investors may alternatively
submit the relevant forms / declarations / documents through their respective custodian who is registered on NSDL platform, on or before
the aforesaid timelines.

For Non-Resident Shareholders:

1. Taxis required to be deducted in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 at applicable rates in force. As per relevant
provisions, tax shall be deducted at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) on the amount of dividend payable.

2. As per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the non-resident shareholder may have an option to be governed by the provisions of
the Double Tax Avoidance Treaty (DTAA) between India and the country of tax residence of the shareholder, if such DTAA provisions are
more beneficial to them. To avail the DTAA benefits, the non-resident shareholder shall furnish the following documents by not later than
Friday,16" September, 2022 (end of day) to the RTA of the Company:

a. Self-attested copy of Permanent Account Number (PAN), if allotted by the Indian Income Tax Authorities;

b. Self-attested Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) issued by the tax authorities of the country of which shareholder is a resident,
evidencing and certifying shareholder’s tax residency status during the Financial Year 2022-23;

Completed and duly signed Self-Declaration in Form 10F;
Self-declaration in the prescribed format certifying on the following points:
Shareholder is and will continue to remain a tax resident of the country of its residence during the Financial Year 2022-23;
Shareholder is eligible to claim the beneficial DTAArate for the purposes of tax withholding on dividend declared by the Company;
iii. Shareholder has noreason to believe thatits claim for the benefits of the DTAAis impaired in any manner;
iv. Shareholder is the ultimate beneficial owner of its shareholding in the Company and dividend receivable from the Company and
Shareholder does not have a taxable presence or a permanent establishmentin India during the Financial Year 2022-23

3. The Company is not obligated to apply the beneficial DTAA rates at the time of tax deduction/withholding on dividend amounts.
Application of beneficial DTAA Rate shall depend upon the completeness and satisfactory review by the Company, of the documents
submitted by Non- Resident shareholder.

4. Notwithstanding Paragraph 2 above, tax shall be deducted at source @20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) on dividend paid to
Foreign Institutional Investors (“FII”) and Foreign Portfolio Investors (“FPI”). Such TDS rate shall not be reduced on account of the
application of the lower DTAArate or lower tax deduction order, if any.

For All Shareholders
In accordance with rule 37BA of Income Tax Rules, where shares are held by intermediaries/ stockbrokers, then such intermediaries/
stockbrokers can provide requisite declarations and the details of such beneficial shareholders along with self-declaration that the
shareholders are the beneficial owners to the RTA on or before Friday,16" September, 2022. Hence, the TDS will be applied by the
Company on the PAN of the beneficial shareholders.

If there is any change in the above information, you are requested to update your records such as tax residential status, permanent
account number (PAN) and register your email address, mobile numbers and other details with your relevant depositories through your

depository participants in case you are holding shares in dematerialized form and if you are holding shares in physical mode, you are
requested to furnish details to the Company’s registrar and share transfer agent,C B Management Services Private Limited. Please also
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note that in order to claim credit of TDS deducted by Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited, it is mandatory to have valid PAN updated at
depository's register. The Company shall not be held liable for unavailability of TDS credit due to invalid/incorrect PAN available in
depository's record. The Company is obligated to deduct tax at source based on the records available with RTA and no request will be
entertained for revision of TDS return.

In the event of any income tax demand (including interest, penalty, etc.) arising from any misrepresentation, inaccuracy or omission of
information provided by the Shareholder(s), such Shareholder(s) will be responsible to indemnify the Company and also provide the
Company with all information/documents and co-operation in any appellate proceedings.

The Members are requested to update their PAN with the Company’s RTA: CB Management Services (P) Ltd. (in case of shares held in
physical mode) and with the depositories (in case of shares held in demat mode).

Unpaid/unclaimed dividend

20.

21.

22.

23.
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26.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under (as amended), any money transferred to the
Unpaid Dividend Account of a Company which remains unpaid/unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer shall
be transferred by the Company along with interest accrued (if any) thereon to ‘Investor Education and Protection Fund’ (IEPF) constituted
by the Central Government. Accordingly, the Company had transferred Rs.33,49,308/- to IEPF which were belonging to the shareholders
whose dividend were unpaid/ unclaimed for the Financial Year 2013-14.

Members are requested to note that the Unclaimed Dividend Amount for the FY 31* March, 2015 (declared and paid in 2015) will be due
for transfer to IEPF on 29" October, 2022.

Further, pursuant to provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,
2016 (as amended), the Company has uploaded details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend amounts lying with the Company as on 28"
September, 2021 (date of last Annual General Meeting) on its website at www.blinv.com and also on the website of IEPF.

Compulsory transfer of Equity Shares to the Investors Education & Protection Fund (IEPF)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (as amended), all shares on which dividend has been unpaid or unclaimed for seven
consecutive years or more are required to be transferred to IEPF. Accordingly, the Company had transferred 5,361 Equity Shares of the
paid up value of Rs.10/- each belonging to 68 shareholders to IEPF on 27" November, 2021.

Further, Members are requested to note that in respect of dividend and shares transferred to IEPF, Members are entitled to claim the
same from |IEPF authority by submitting an online application in the prescribed Form IEPF- 5 available on the website www.iepf.gov.in
and sending a physical copy of the same duly signed by the claimant along with the requisite documents enumerated in Form IEPF-5 to
the Nodal Officer of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company for verification of his/her claim.

The details of the Nodal Officer of the Company for IEPF are as under:

i. Name of Nodal Officer: - Shri Abhishek Lahoti, Company Secretary

ii. Address: BalmerLawrie Investments Limited, 21, Netaji Subhas Road, 3rd Floor, Kolkata 700001
iii. E-mail ID: lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com

BOOK CLOSURE - The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, 21%
September, 2022 to Tuesday, 27" September, 2022 (both days inclusive).

SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Further, with effect

from 1* April, 2019 SEBI has also mandated that requests for effecting transfer of Securities shall not be processed unless the Securities

are held in dematerialised form with depository. In view of above, Members are requested to consider dematerializing their shares held in

physical form. Members are requested to notify on or before 20" September,2022 (applicable for share holders holding shares in physical

mode) the following to the Registrar & ShareTransfer Agent of the Company in the prescribed formats at:

i. CB Management Services (P)Ltd. (‘CB’), at P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata—700 019,

ii. Ph:03340116700,

iii. emailid: rta@cbmsl.com

a) AnyChange of address (including pin code), mandate, etc.

b) Particulars of bank account number, IFSC and MICR code, name and address of the bank along with original cancelled cheque which
shall bear the name of the securities holder failing which securities holder shall submit copy of bank passbook/statement attested by
the bank.

C

~

Copy of self-attested PAN Card, if not already provided.

d) Members who are holding Shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered with their respective Depository
Participants (DPs) which will be used by the Company for electronic credit/despatch of dividend. The Company or its RTA cannot act
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on any request received directly from the Members holding Shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank
mandates. Such changes are to be advised by the Members concerned to their respective DPs. Any such changes effected by the
DPs will automatically reflect in the Company’s subsequent records.

e) Toquote the ledger Folio or client ID and DP ID numbers in all communications addressed either to the Company or to RTA.

NOMINATION BY SECURITIES HOLDERS

Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, any holder of securities of the Company may, at any time, nominate, in Form No.SH-
13, any person as his/her nominee upon whom the securities shall vest in the event of his/her death. A nomination may be cancelled or
varied by nominating any other person in place of the present nominee,by the holder of securities who has made the nomination, by giving
a notice of such cancellation or variation, to the Company in Form No.SH-14. The cancellation or variation shall take effect from the date
on which the notice of such variation or cancellation is received by the Company. The said form can be downloaded from the website of
the Company at — www.blinv.com. Members holding the shares in physical form may submit the same to RTA, of the Company CB
Management Services (P) Ltd. Members holding shares in electronic form may submit the same to their respective depository participant.

Members who hold Shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names are requested
to write to the Company’s RTA, enclosing their Share Certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into a single folio.

In accordance with the provisions of Section136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audited Accounts of each of its subsidiaries are placed
on the website of the Company(www.blinv.com). Additionally, the Company will provide a copy of separate Audited Financial Statements
in respect of its subsidiary companies, to any shareholder of the Company on making requisition in writing to the Company Secretary at
the Registered Office of the Company or at the office of Company’s RTA.

Green Initiative: Members who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all
communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

Any person who is nota Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information only.

Any person,who becomes a Member of the Company after the dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on cut-off day i.e., Tuesday
20"September, 2022 (end of day) may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.However, if he/she is
already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting by following instructions for e-voting stated in subsequent paras.

CS Binita Pandey, Partner of M/s. T. Chatterjee & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. ACS 41594 & CP no.
19730) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board to scrutinize remote e-voting process before the AGM as well as e-voting at
the AGM in afair and transparent manner.

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, after the end of the discussion on the resolution on which voting is to be held, allow voting by use of e-
voting system for all those Members who are present at the AGM through VC or OAVM but have not cast their vote by availing the remote
e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall submit within, not later than two working days from of
the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, to the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The Results will be declared within two working days of the conclusion of 21% AGM. The results declared alongwith the Report of the
Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company www.blinv.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration
of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited and
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route Map is not annexed to this Notice.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORREMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 23" September, 2022 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Monday, 26" September, 2022 at
5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in
the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as onTuesday, 20" September, 2022 (End of Day) (cut-off date), may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date, being Tuesday,20" September,2022 (End of Day).

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede”

1.Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-
Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

M5DL Mobile App is ovailable on

@ AppStore B Google Play
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Individual Shareholders holding 1. Existing users who have opted for Easi/ Easiest, they can login through their
securities in demat mode with CDSL user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi/ Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and
click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E
Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provideri.e. NSDL.
Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. Ifthe useris not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in

progress.
Individual Shareholders (holding You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
securities in demat mode) login through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
their depository participants Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option
available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depositoryi.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in demat mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43




Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2i.e. Castyour vote electronically.

4. YourUser ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Your User ID is:
Physical

(a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL. 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12******
thenyouruser ID is IN30Q***q2******,

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL. 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your
user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the
company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456
thenuserIDis 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) Ifyouare already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyouare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you.
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your
password.

c) Howtoretrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) Ifyouremail ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf
file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not
registered.

6. Ifyouare unable to retrieve or have notreceived the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your
demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.
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d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. Afterentering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. Afteryou click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose
voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during
the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the VVoting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate optionsi.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to
cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to CS Binita Pandey at csbinita.tca@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed
under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and

becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e.
Tuesday, 20" September, 2022 (end of day), may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use
your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using
“Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll
free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 . In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who
acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of
the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, 20" September, 2022 (end of day), may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under
Step 1:“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above).

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22
44 30 orsendarequestto Ms. PallaviMhatre, Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password and
registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front
and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master
or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) to lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested
to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting by
providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated 9th December, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting
facility.

THEINSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THEAGMARE AS UNDER:-

1.

2.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting systemin the
AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall
be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THEAGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access
by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link”
placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join
General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker may send

their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com latest
by Thursday, 22™ September 2022 (end of day).

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at at lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com latest by Thursday, 22 September 2022 (end
of day).The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the
meeting.

When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the next speaker will be invited to speak.
Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with a video/ camera along with good internet speed.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, for smooth conduct of the
AGM.

1"
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10. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or
call 1800 1020 990/ 1800 22 44 30.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

[Forming Part of the Notice to the Members]

Item No.5: Appointment of Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166) as Government Nominee Director and fixation of terms of
appointment:

The Board of Directors as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and allied Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company read
with letter No. No.CA-31032/1/2021-PNG-37493 dated 14" June, 2022 received from the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, (MoPNG),
Government of India and in line with the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had appointed Shri Shyam Singh
Mahar (DIN: 08511166) as a Non-Executive Additional Director of the Company having the designation of Government Nominee Director upto
the date of this AGM. The Administrative Ministry in the aforesaid letter had nominated Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166) as the
Government Nominee Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 14" June, 2022 for a period of three years on co-terminus basis or
until further orders from the Administrative Ministry, whichever is earlier.

The Company has received from Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166), Form No. DIR-2, consent to act as a Director Form DIR-8
confirming that he is eligible to be appointed as a Director as prescribed under the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 and a declaration pursuant to Circular No.- LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 dated 20th June, 2018 issued by BSE Ltd. w.r.t enforcement
of SEBI order regarding appointment of Directors by listed entities stating that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of
any SEBI Order or any other such authority. The same has also been verified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

The Company has received a valid notice of candidature from a member as per the provision of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013,
proposing the appointment of Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166) as a Director of the Company whose period of office as director shall
be subject to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

Except Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166), being the proposed appointee, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this Ordinary Resolution.

The particulars of Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166) is attached with this explanatory statement.

The brief resume of Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166) is stated in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board of Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution for your approval.

The particulars of directors who are proposed to be re-appointed/appointed at the 21st Annual General Meeting to be held on

Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 as required under regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and para 1.2.5 of (SS-2) are given below:

Particulars Name of the Director, Designation & DIN
Shri Sandip Das* Shri Shyam Singh Mahar
Non-Executive Director Government Nominee Director
(Ex-officio)
(DIN 08217697) (DIN: 08511166)

Date of Birth 25" December, 1962 12" June, 1963
Date of first Appointment on the 5" May, 2020 1 July, 2022
Board of Balmer Lawrie Investments

Limited

Date of fappointmentl last 25" September, 2020 Not Applicable
re-appointment at the Annual

General Meeting

12
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Particulars Name of the Director, Designation & DIN

Shri Sandip Das* Shri Shyam Singh Mahar
Non-Executive Director Government Nominee Director
(Ex-officio)

(DIN 08217697) (DIN: 08511166)

Qualifications . Bachelor of Commerce from Bachelor of Science (Physics Hons)
St. Xavier’s College, Kolkata from Delhi University

. CharteredAccountant from the
Institute of Chartered the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India

Shri Sandip Das has more than 33 He is currently working as the
years of experience. During his Deputy Secretary (Admin) under
career in Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd., the Ministry of Petroleum and

he has worked in core business areas | Natural Gas,Government of India.
in both manufacturing and services
verticals at multiple level as well as in
the corporate finance function.

Expertise in Specific
Functional areas
(including experience)

Terms and Conditions of As contained in letters bearing As contained in letter bearing
re-appointment/appointment reference no. P-21014/1/2006- Mkt reference no.- CA-31032/1/2021
dated 16" April, 2010 and -PNG-37493 dated 14" June, 2022
CA-31024/2/2018-PNG (25059)
dated 20" January, 2020 received
from Ministry of Petroleum and
Natural Gas, Government of India

Details of Remuneration last drawn Nil Not Applicable

No remuneration or sitting fee is No Remuneration or sitting fees is

Details of Remuneration sought to : .
9 paid to the Director. paid to the Director

be paid

No. of meetings of the Board attended

during the Financial Year 2021-22 Not Applicable

Shareholding of the Director in
Balmer Lawrie Investments
Limited

Relationship with other Directors,
Manager and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.

1. Balmer Lawrie and Company
Limited, Director (Finance) and
Chief Financial Officer

2. Visakhapatnam Port Logistics
Park Limited, Non-Executive
Director

Directorship on the Board of other
Companies /offices held in other
Companies.

3. Balmer Lawrie-Van Leer Limited,
Nominee Director
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Particulars Name of the Director, Designation & DIN
Shri Sandip Das* Shri Shyam Singh Mahar
Non-Executive Director Government Nominee Director
(Ex-officio)
(DIN 08217697) (DIN: 08511166)
Membership/ Chairmanship of 1. Audit Committee - Member 1. Audit Committee- Member
Committee(s) of Balmer Lawrie
Investments Limited 2. Stakeholders Relationship 2. Stakeholders Relationship
Committee - Chairman Committee- Member
3. Corporate Social Responsibility 3. Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee - Chairman Committee —Member
4. Nomination and Remuneration 4. Nomination and Remuneration
Committee - Member Committee- Chairman
5. Risk Management Committee - 5. Risk Management Committee
Member - Member

1. Balmer Lawrie and Company

Membership/ Chairmanship of Limited:
Committee(s) of the Board of other
Companies a. Audit Committee - Member

b. Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee - Member

c. Stakeholders Relationship
Committee - Member

2. Balmer Lawrie Van-Leer Limited:

a. Stakeholders Relationship
Committee - Member

3. Visakhapatnam Port Logistics
Park Limited:

a. Audit Committee - Chairman

Names of Listed entities from ) )
which the Director has resigned in Nil Nil
the past three years

Note: * Shri Sandip Das retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board of Directors
21, Netaji Subhas Road Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.
Kolkata 700 001 Abhishek Lahoti

Company Secretary
Date: 12" August, 2022 ACS 25141

Place: Kolkata
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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS

Dear Esteemed Members,

Hope you and your family are keeping safe in these challenging times.

It is my privilege to present before you the 21% Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year
2021-22. As informed in the notice of the AGM also, in view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic and in compliance with circulars of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), this AGM is being also
held through VC/OAVM, like the previous year.

You may be aware that your Company is a special purpose vehicle and the income of your Company is
primarily the dividend received from its subsidiary Balmer Lawrie & Co. Limited and the interest received
by promptly deploying the surplus fund into fixed deposits. It is a pleasure to approach the members with a
recommendation for declaration of a dividend of 300% (Rs.30.00 per equity share). It is a persistent
endeavour to provide maximum value to the shareholders for the investments in the Company.

The Company constantly endeavours to ensure Compliance with Corporate Governance Guidelines/norms
to the extent of factors within its control. The Company has made contribution to “Prime Minister’s Citizen
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) towards its CSR expenditure for
2021-22.

| would take this opportunity to offer humble gratitude to the shareholders for vesting their confidence in
the management of the Company. | would like to acknowledge the continuous support and guidance that
we have been receiving from the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas and other Ministries of the Govt. of
India.

| would also like to thank our subsidiary company, Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. for its support and compliment it
for its continued performance and stability.

| would also like to express thanks to our valued shareholders, bankers, financial institutions and other
stakeholders for their continued support and co-operation. Finally, | must convey my gratitude to my
colleagues on the Board for their wise counsel and valued involvement in helping us to manage the affairs
of the Company.

Thank You

SANDIP DAS
Chairman, Non-Executive Director
Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.
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BOARD’S REPORT
To the Members,

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 21st Annual Report of the Company along with the
audited Financial Statement (both standalone and consolidated) for the Financial Year ended 31st March,
2022 and other allied statements/disclosures as required as per the applicable statute.

Overview of the State of the Company’s Affairs

Your Company’s performance is primarily dependent upon two factors, one, being the dividend received
from its subsidiary, Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (BL) and the other being the interest received from
deployment of surplus funds with Scheduled Commercial Banks.

During the year under review, i.e., 2021-22, there was decrease in interest income and dividend income of
the Company and accordingly, the total income of your Company decreased by around Rs.1766.42 Lakhs
as compared to the last Financial Year, i.e., 2020-21. The amount of dividend income received from the
subsidiary during the year under review was at lower rate.

The summary of comparative annual financial results for the year under review, i.e., 2021-22 as against the
immediately preceding Financial Year, i.e., 2020-21, has been furnished below:

Financial Summary (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Profit before Tax 6780.31 8612.63
Less: Provision for Tax 118.61 150.47
Net Profit 6,661.70 8462.16

Transfer to Reserves
The Board of Directors have decided not to transfer any amount to reserves.
Share Capital

The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 stood at Rs.22,19,72,690 (at
same value in the previous year). During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares
with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity shares. The Company had
increased its Authorised Share Capital from Rs.25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores) to
Rs.100,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores)

Dividend

The Board recommend a dividend of 300%, i.e., Rs. 30.00/- (Rupees Thirty only) per equity share of
Rs.10/- each fully paid-up, for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 (as against 380%, i.e., Rs.
38.00/- (Rupees Thirty Eight) per equity share for the previous Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021).
The dividend, if declared by the shareholders at the ensuing 215t Annual General Meeting (AGM), will be
paid either by way of warrant, demand draft or electronic mode and will be paid to those Shareholders who
would be holding shares of the Company as on the cut-off date fixed for the purpose i.e., 20t September
2022 (End of Day), within 30 days from the date of such declaration. In respect of shares held
electronically, dividend will be paid to the beneficial owners, as per details to be furnished by their
respective Depositories, i.e., either Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. or National Securities
Depository Ltd. as on 20" September 2022 (End of Day) fixed as cut-off date for the purpose.

Appropriation

The amount available for appropriations for the Financial Year 2021-22 as compared to the immediately
preceding Financial Year 2020-21, are given hereunder:
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(Rs. in Lakh)
STANDALONE FINANCIAL CONSOLIDATED
RESULTS FINANCIAL RESULTS*
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
PAT 6,661.70 8462.16 8,851.69 7972.59
Add: Transfer from 9,179.97 9041.79 73,146.37 73586.49
Profit & Loss Account
Total amount available for 15,841.67 17503.95 81,998.06 81559.08
Appropriation
Appropriations:
Dividend paid @ 375%, in 8434.96 8323.98 8434.96 8323.98
FY 2020-2021 and @
380% in FY 2021-22
Corporate Tax on Dividend - - - -
Transfer to General Reserve - - - -
Other Adjustment - - 1362.38 88.73
Minority interest / Foreign - - - -
Exchange
Surplus carried forward to next 7406.71 9179.97 74925.48 73146.37
Total of Appropriations 8434.96 8323.98 7072.58 8412.71

* The Board’s Report is based on standalone financial statements of the Company and this information is
given as an added information to the members.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

Pursuant to the amendment in Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as the Company was falling under the top
1000 listed entities (based on the market capitalization) as on 315t March, 2021, the Company was required
to formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy. However, the Company is governed by the guidelines of
Department of Investment and Public Asset Management, Ministry of Finance, Government of India, on
capital restructuring of Central Public Sector Undertakings dated 27" May, 2016 which contains detailed
provisions regarding payment dividend. The said guidelines is available on the website of the Company at
the following link:

https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/admin/uploads/quidelines-on-capital-restructuring-of-cpse-27-05-
2016.pdf

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

As stated earlier, Company’s performance is primarily dependent upon two factors, one, being the
dividend received from its subsidiary, Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (BL) and the other being the interest
received from deployment of surplus funds with Scheduled Commercial Banks.

The spread of COVID-19, pandemic has severely affected the businesses around the globe. In many
countries including India, there has been severe disruption to regular operations due to lock-downs,
disruptions in transportations, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other
emergency measures. The Company has been constantly updating its shareholders about the possible
impact of COVID-19 on its business financial position and liquidity. The disclosures made by Balmer Lawrie
& Co. Ltd. (our subsidiary) from time to time would be essential to determine the consequent financial
position of the Company in turn in future.
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Deposits with Bank

Surplus funds of the Company have been deployed in various Fixed Deposit Schemes of the Scheduled
Commercial Banks. As on 31st March 2022, the total amount of deployments in the Fixed Deposit Schemes
is Rs. 12147.55 Lakh, which in turn has yielded an interest income of Rs. 589.23 Lakh during the year
ended 315t March, 2022 (Rs. 764.09 Lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2021).

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Your Company is not engaged in any other business activity, except, to hold the equity shares of Balmer
Lawrie & Co. Ltd. and accordingly matters to be covered under ‘Management Discussion and Analysis
Report’ are not applicable to your Company.

Report on Subsidiary Companies and their contribution to the overall performance of the
Company during the year

In terms of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) your Company has two subsidiaries
company, namely, Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (‘BL’), and Visakhapatnam Port Logistics Park Limited
(‘VPLPL’). By virtue of shareholding in BL (61.8%), your Company is the holding Company of BL. BL in turn
has one subsidiary VPLPL.

Balmer Lawrie (UK) Ltd. (‘BLUK’) was a 100% foreign subsidiary of BL and was incorporated in the United
Kingdom. During the FY 2021-22, the BLUK had been struck off by the Registrar of Companies at UK on
218t September, 2021 and finally dissolved with effect from 28th September, 2021 pursuant to the
voluntary striking off application filed by BLUK in furtherance to the resolution passed shareholders of
BLUK.

During the Financial Year 2018-19, the Company had revised the “Policy for determining material
subsidiaries” in terms of the amended SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 w.e.f. 29t March, 2019. The policy
may be accessed on the Company’s website at:

https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/admin/uploads/Policy on determining material subsidiaries amended
-pdf

As per the aforesaid policy, none of its subsidiaries appear to be a material subsidiary of the Company.

A brief write up about the Subsidiaries inter-alia reporting about its performance and financial position and
other significant events is presented hereunder:

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (BL)

BL recorded net turnover of Rs. 210484.97 Lakh during 2021-22 as against Rs.159276.79 Lakh in 2020-
21 registering a increase of approximately 32.15% over the last year. It also recorded a Profit Before
Tax of Rs. 17014.45 Lakh in 2021-22 as against Rs.15664.97 Lakh in 2020-21. BL’'s Board of directors have
recommended a dividend of Rs. 6.50 per equity share for FY 2021-22.

Balmer Lawrie (UK) Ltd. [BLUK]

Balmer Lawrie (UK) Ltd. (‘BLUK’) was a 100% subsidiary of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (subsidiary of your
Company) and incorporated in the United Kingdom. The subsidiary had previously been engaged in the
business of Leasing & Hiring of Marine Freight Containers as also in Tea Warehousing, Blending &
Packaging.

During the FY 2021-22, the Company had been struck off by the Registrar of Companies at UK on 21st
September, 2021 and finally dissolved with effect from 28" September, 2021.

Visakhapatnam Port Logistics Park Limited [VPLPL]

“Visakhapatnam Port Logistics Park Limited” (‘VPLPL’) is a joint venture of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (‘BL’)
and Visakhapatnam Port Authority (VPA), formed with the sole objective of building and operating a
Multimodal Logistics Hub on a land admeasuring around 53 acres in Visakhapatnam, which was taken on
30 years long term lease from VPA.
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VPLPL was incorporated on 24t July 2014 under the Companies Act, 2013 with equity contribution in the
ratio of 60:40 between the joint venture partners. BL for its 60% equity stake in VPLPL paid its contribution
in cash, whereas VPA acquired its 40% equity stake in VPLPL for consideration other than cash. The
value of upfront lease rentals of 53 acres of land for 30 years was considered as the value of 40% equity
stake of VPA in VPLPL.

The Multimodal Logistics Hub (MMLH) facility comprising mechanised warehouses, specialised
/temperature-controlled storage solutions, facilities for mechanised material handling and intermodal
transfer between container terminals, bulk/break — bulk cargo terminals. This hub provides the facility to
handle both bonded as well as non-bonded cargo coupled with offering of value-added services such as
customs clearance, sorting/grading/aggregation/disaggregation etc. to handle freight. The unit is also
having rail connectivity of 1.36 KM length, where 4 rakes can be handled in a day. VPLPL has a core and
structured sales and operations team for business development and efficient execution.

The mechanised warehouse facility of the JVC covering around 2.5 acres with installed capacity of
1,06,650 sq. ft. had witnessed a tremendous growth in business during the financial year 2021-22,
whereby its average utilization has increased from 67% (2020-21) to 97% (2021-22) almost 45% increase
during the financial year 2021-22, as compared to the previous financial year 2020-21.

The JVC has a temperature-controlled warehouse facility equipped with frozen & chilled chambers with a
capacity of handling 3,780 pallets. During the financial year 2021-22, it had also witnessed a remarkable
business where the average actual capacity utilization increased from 34% (2020-21) to 95% (2021-22), a
stupendous increase of 179% during the Financial Year 2021-22, as compared to the previous financial
year 2020-21.

The JVC during the year under review experienced a significant increase in demand of its open yard due
to its location advantage, convenience of handling cargos and modern operational solution. The
customers for this particular business ranges from private entities to PSUs. During the year under review,
its average actual capacity utilization increased from 20% to 40%, an increase of 100% during the
Financial Year 2021-22, as compared to the previous financial year 2020-21.

The railway siding facility during the year under review was able to cater to the growing demands of steel
and aluminium exports from Visakhapatnam Port and 123 rakes carrying this cargo were handled at the
facility during the year.

Both the JV partners complemented each other to attract more business for the JVC.

VPLPL despite having CFS/ICD infrastructure is not able to handle EXIM cargo due to non-receipt of
CFS/ICD license. VPLPL took the advantage of the Ministry of Finance, Circular no. 50/2020 dated 5th
November 2020 on new policy and procedures, for setting up of the new CFS/ICD/AFS and had applied
for the second time for its CFS license, in May 2021, for operating a Container freight Station in its new
Multimodal Logistics Hub facility in Visakhapatnam. Recently, our Hon’ble Prime Minister has launched
PM GATI SHAKTI, which aims to develop cargo terminals with multi-modal mode of transportation. The
multi-modal connectivity will provide integrated and seamless connectivity for movement of people, goods
and services from one mode of transport to another. It will facilitate the last mile connectivity of
infrastructure and also reduce travel time for people. VPLPL is an existing facility which fits perfectly into
the scheme of things for GATI SHAKTI. If VPLPL receives the CFS license then its revenue will increase
many folds.

During the financial year 2021-22, VPLPL was able to generate total revenue of Rs. 14.01 crores as
against Rs. 9.34 crore earned in the previous year 2020-21. However due to depreciation and interest on
borrowing, VPLPL ended up the year 2021-22, with a loss of Rs. 8.21 crore, as compared to the previous
year’s loss of Rs. 12.59 crore.

Financial Statements of Subsidiary Companies

The Financial Statements and Results of your Company have been duly consolidated with its Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS).
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Further, in line with first proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules
thereon, Consolidated Financial Statements prepared by your Company includes a separate Statement in
Form ‘AOC-1’ containing the salient features of the Financial Statement of your Company’s Subsidiaries,
Associates & Joint Ventures (as applicable) which forms part of the Annual Report.

However, separate audited accounts in respect of each of its subsidiary is placed on the website of the
Company — www.blinv.com. Further, a copy of separate audited financial statements in respect of each of
the subsidiary shall be provided on requisition of any shareholder of the Company.

Cessation/Change in Joint Ventures/ Subsidiaries/ Associate Companies during the Year

During FY 2021-22, Balmer Lawrie (UK) Ltd., a foreign subsidiary of the Company had been struck off by
the Registrar of Companies at UK on 21st September, 2021 and finally dissolved with effect from 28t
September, 2021.

Deposits

Your Company has neither accepted nor is holding any deposits from the public during the Financial Year
2021-22 and no deposit remained unpaid or unclaimed at the end of Financial Year and there was no
instance of default in repayment of deposits or interests thereon during the financial year and there are NIL
deposits which were not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, the Company shall not be accepting any deposits in Financial Year 2022-23.

Compliance of Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005
Information, which are mandatorily required to be disclosed under the RTI Act 2005, have been disclosed

on the website of your Company. The report on receipt and disposal of RTI applications during the
financial year 2021-22 is as under:

Opening Received |[No. of cases| Decisions Decisions | Closing
Balance as during transferred where where balance as
on the Year to other request/ requests/ on
01.04.2021 | (including Public appeals appeals [31.03.2022
cases Authorities rejected accepted
transferred to
other Public
Authority)
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (9)
Requests 0 21* 0 4 15 2
First 0 0 0 0 0 0
Appeals

*These requests were received online through RTI Request & Appeal Management Information System
hence the fee is collected by Department of Personnel & Training, Government of India.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

Since, the Company does not have any business other than to hold shares of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.
the reporting of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption as per Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for your Company.

The details pertaining to Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are enumerated as under: NIL
Risk Management Policy

The Company does not have any business apart from holding the shares of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. and
is a Special Purpose Vehicle formed for temporary purpose. However, for compliance of provisions of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (as amended) pertaining to Risk Management Committee, the Board had constituted the Risk
Management Committee on 11" February, 2022, fixed its terms of reference and approved the Risk
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Management Plan for the Company. The Committee formulated the Risk Management Policy at its
meeting dated 28t March, 2022 and also identified risks associated with the Company.

Apart from the nature of the Company discussed above, in the opinion of the Board, there exists no other
risk which may threaten the existence of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Annual Report on CSR Activities

1.

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The CSR Policy of the Company is as under:

Philosophy

The Policy is in the nature of initiatives or endeavour which the key stakeholders expect of the
Company in the discharge of their Corporate Social Responsibility. It reflects the willingness of the
Company to voluntarily take a few extra steps to address social, economic and environmental concerns
but are nevertheless worthy of attention for promotion of sustainable development in its diverse
dimensions.

Activities to be undertaken

It is the policy of the Company to undertake any activity which is permissible to be carried out towards
CSR as per:

1) Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 (the act) and the allied Rules, including any
statutory amendment thereof,

2) The guidelines formulated by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) on CSR and
Sustainability (hereinafter referred to as 'the Guidelines') which are applicable to CPSEs.

Implementation
The Company shall endeavour to implement activities/programs as per the CSR Policy keeping in view:
1) the constraints faced due to the form and nature of organisation.

2) the administrative and incidental cost are minimum so that the maximum expenditure so
allocated is spent for the benefit of the society.

CSR Expenditure

CSR expenditure will include all expenditure, direct and indirect, incurred by the Company on CSR
Activities/ Programmes undertaken in accordance with the approved CSR Plan.

Any surplus arising from any CSR Activities/Programmes shall be used for CSR. Accordingly, any
income arising from CSR Programmes will be netted off from the CSR expenditure and such net
amount will be reported as CSR expenditure. The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the
website of the Company at:

https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/admin/uploads/CSR _and Sustainability Policy.pdf

Composition of CSR Committee as on 31St March, 2022

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company consisted of the following members as
on 31 March, 2022:
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SI. Name of Director |Designation / Nature Number of Number of meeting
No. of Directorship meeting of CSR of CSR
Committee held Committee attended
during the year during the year
1 Smt. Shilpa Independent 1 1
Shashikant Director -
Patwardhan Chairperson
2 Shri Sandip Das Non-Executive 1 1
Director —
Member
3 Shri Mrityunjay Jha Government 1 1
Nominee Director
— Member

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company.
https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/index.php
https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/policies.php

Since the Company makes the CSR Expenditure by way of contribution to permissible Funds as per
Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013, there are no CSR projects, per se to be enumerated on its

website.

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report): Not applicable

5. The Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off
for the financial year, if any: Not applicable

Sl. | Financial | Amount Available for set off | Amount required to be set-off
No. year from preceding financial for the financial year, if any
years (in Rs.) (in Rs.)
1. NA NA NA
Total NA NA

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 763.54 Lakhs
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.15.27 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years —
Not Applicable

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Not Applicable
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs.15.27 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent (in Rs. Lakhs)
for the FY: 2021-22
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund

to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VIl as
as per section 135 (6) per second proviso to section 135

15.27 Amount| Date of transfer | Name of the | Amount Date of
Fund transfer
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for FY: 2021-22.

Not Applicable.

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) 3) (4) () (6) (7) (8)
Sl. Name of Item from Local Location of the | Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | the Project | the list of area project. spent for | Implementation Implementation -
activities | (Yes/No). the - Direct Through
in project (Yes/No). Implementing
Schedule (in Rs.) Agency
VIl to
the Act.
State | District. Name CSR
Registration
number.
1 Contribution | (viii) No NA NA 15,27,100 Yes NA NA
to PM Contribution
CARES to PM
Fund CARES
Fund
Total 15,27,100
(d) Amount spent in administrative Overheads: NIL
(e) Amount Spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.: Not Applicable
(f) Total Amount spent for FY (8b+8c+8d+8e).: Rs. 15.27 Lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any. Not Applicable
SlI. No. Particular Amount
(in Rs./Lakhs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 15.27
(ii) Total amount spent for the FY 2021-22 15.27
(iii) Excess amount spent for FY 2021-22 [(ii) —(i)] 0.00
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes of activities of 0.00
the previous Financial Years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [ (iii)-(iv)] 0.00
9. (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years. Not Applicable
Sl. | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No. FY transferred to |spent in the | specified under Schedule VIl as per | remaining to be
Unspent CSR | reporting section 135(6), if any spent in
Accqunt under | FY (In Rs.) Name of ATount Date of sucqeedmg FY
section 135(6) . (in Rs.)
(in Rs.) the Fund (in Rs) transfer

(b)

year(s):

Not Applicable

Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
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M @ 3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. |Project| Name Financial | Project Total |Amount spent| Cumulative | Status of
ID of the Year in Duratio| amount |on the projectamount spent the
project | which the n allocated in the at the end of | project-
project was for the reporting | the reporting Completed
com- project (in |financial year| FY (in Rs.) |/ Ongoing
menced Rs.) (in Rs.)

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details). Not Applicable

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc. Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset). Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable
Sandip Das Mrityunjay jha
Chairperson of CSR Committee Member

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of provisions of Section 134(3)(c) &134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 your Board of Directors to
the best of their knowledge and ability confirm that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanations and there were no material departures;

(i)

(i) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit and loss of the Company for
that period;

(i) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provision of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(vi) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Corporate Governance
Your Company has been consistently complying with the various Regulations and Guidelines of the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as well as of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) to the
extent under the control of the Company.
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Pursuant to the said SEBI Regulations and DPE Guidelines, a separate section titled ‘Corporate
Governance Report’ is being furnished and marked as Annexure-1.

The provisions on Corporate Governance under DPE Guidelines which do not exist in the SEBI Guidelines
and also do not contradict any of the provisions of the SEBI Regulations are also complied with.

Further, your Company’s Statutory Auditors have examined compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance and issued a certificate, which is annexed to this Report and marked as Annexure-2.

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and meetings of the Board during the year

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on 31° March, 2022, the Board of your Company consisted of the following three Directors:

a. Shri Sandip Das, Non-Executive Director, Non- Independent Director, Chairperson, Ex-officio
member.

b. Shri Mrityunjay Jha, Government Nominee Director, Non-Executive
Director.

c. Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan, Non-Executive, Woman Independent Director

The Company has only one KMP i.e. Company Secretary. The Company does not have any MD/Whole
time director or CFO.

Meetings of the Board during the year

The details of the meetings of the Board held during the year have been enumerated in the Corporate
Governance Report marked as Annexure — 1.

Directors retired/appointed/resigned during the year Appointments
None during the year
Cessation

As per nomination letter bearing reference no.- C-31033/2/2018-CA (22758) dated 24t July, 2018 by
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, the administrative ministry, the directorship of Shri Ajay Singhal (DIN:
08187034) as Non-Executive, Independent Director of the Company ceased with effect from 24" July,
2021 owing to end of his tenure.

As per nomination letters bearing reference no. C-31033/1/2012-CA/FTS:18688 dated 2™ January, 2016
and C-31033/1/2016-CA/FTS:42979 dated 27t May, 2019 received by the Company from the Ministry of
Petroleum & Natural Gas, being the Administrative Ministry, the directorship of Smt. Perin Devi Rao (DIN:
07145051) as Non-Executive, Government Nominee Director from the Board of Directors of the Company
ceased with effect from 2 January, 2022 owing to end of her tenure.

Details relating to Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees

Your Company being a Government Company, vide notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 5" June, 2015 (as
amended) has been exempted from the applicability of Section 134(3)(e) and Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company does not pay any sitting fee to any directors except Independent
Directors. Further, the Company does not have any employee of its own other than the Company
Secretary, who is seconded to the Company from its subsidiary pursuant to the service agreement.

Board Evaluation and Criteria for evaluation
Your Company, being a Government Company - vide Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5% June, 2015

(as amended) has been exempted from applicability of section 134(3)(p) and 178(2), (3) and (4) of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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As the appointment of directors of the Company (including the Independent Directors) is done as per the
direction of the administrative ministry, the Board is not in a position to form an opinion with regard to the
aspects stated in Rule 8(5)(iii)(a) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Declaration by Independent Director

Your Company has received declaration from the Independent Director of the Company confirming that
she had met the criteria of independence prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Audit Committee

The Committee as of 31° March, 2022 consisted of 3 members and all of them, including the Chairperson
of the Committee, were Non-Executive Directors.

As of 31 March, 2022, the following were the members of the Committee:

Names Position held
Smt Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan, Non-Executive - Independent Director Chairperson
Shri Sandip Das, Non-Executive Director Member
Shri Mrityunjay Jha, Non-Executive - Nominee Director Member

All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and some members possess accounting/
financial management expertise also. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to this Committee.

There were no such instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Related Party Transactions

As per Regulation 23 (5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, sub regulations (2), (3) and (4) of Regulation 23 of the said Regulations
shall not apply to transactions entered into between two government companies.

Further, there were no materially significant RPT during the year under review made by the Company with
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. Furthermore, no material related party transaction was entered into by the
Company as per the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Related Party Transaction Policy adopted by the Company.

Your Company had adopted a policy on “Related Party Transactions” with effect from 28th March, 2015.
The said Policy was amended w.e.f. 1st April, 2022 vide Board Resolution dated 11th February, 2022 to
bring it in line with the amendment in the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and has been
uploaded on the website of the Company and is available on the following link:

https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/admin/uploads/5%20Related%20Party%20Transactions.pdf

The said policy lays down a procedure to ensure that transactions by and between the Related Parties
and the Company are properly identified, reviewed and duly approved & disclosed in accordance with the
applicable laws. The Policy also sets out materiality thresholds for Related Party Transactions and the
material modifications thereof, as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Particulars of contracts and arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties referred to in

section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso
thereto
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Form No. AOC-2

1. Details of contracts and arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis — NIL. All the contracts
and arrangements or transactions with Related Parties during the year ended 31st March, 2022 were
on arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis — NIL. None of the
transactions with Related Party can be considered as “material” as per the policy on - Materiality of
Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions adopted by the Company.

All contracts or arrangement entered into under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
enumerated in details in Note no.31 of Standalone Financial Statements in compliance with the applicable
accounting standards, thereby forming part of the financial statement as on 31stMarch, 2022.

Justification on the Related Party Transactions entered —

* In the year 2002, the Company for the purpose of infrastructure and management support entered into
a service contract with its subsidiary Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (BL), since the Company does not have
any infrastructure arrangement or any employee. The said agreement is renewed from time to time
pursuant to which the Company receives services in nature of administration, finance, taxation, legal,
secretarial, etc from BL.

+ The Company was formed as a Special Purpose Vehicle with no regular business activity on 20"
September, 2001, with the sole objective of holding the Equity shares of BL, transferred / de-merged
from IBP Co. Ltd. (under the scheme of Arrangement & Reconstruction);

» The major source of income of your Company is dividend earned from its subsidiary, BL.

» The Company has no employees of its own including the Company Secretary, who is seconded from
the subsidiary Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

Details of investments made by the Company in other company is enumerated in Note 7 of Standalone
Financial Statement.

Auditors

The Statutory Auditors of your Company (being a ‘Government Company’), are appointed by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (‘CAG’) under Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the remuneration of
the Statutory Auditors for the year 2022-23 is to be determined by the members at the ensuing 215t Annual
General Meeting.

Report of the Statutory Auditor

The Report of the Statutory Auditors on Annual Accounts of your Company for Financial Year ended 31t
March, 2022 does not have any reservation, qualification, adverse remark or disclaimer. Report of the
Statutory Auditors is attached with the Financial Statement.

The office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (‘CAG’) had conducted the supplementary audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 313t March, 2022. In respect of the Standalone
financial statement of the Company, the CAG has commented that nothing significant has come to their
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under
Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013. The communication from the CAG in this regard is attached
as Annexure-3A. In respect of the Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company, the CAG has
highlighted some significant matters under section 143(6)(b) read with section 129(4) of the Companies
Act, 2013. The said communication from the CAG in this regard is attached as Annexure-3B. The
management response against each of the comments by CAG is as under:
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Sl.

No.

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of
the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial
Statements of Balmer
Lawrie Investments Limited for the year
ended 31°t March 2022 (Consolidated)

Management's Response

Balance Sheet:
Non-current Liabilities:
Provisions:

lakh

The above does not include liability towards the
Balmer Lawrie Staff Provident Fund in respect
of doubtful investments of X 11.65 crore in M/s
DHFL, M/s IL&FS, and M/s Reliance Capital
along with interests of ¥ 2.28 crore. It was seen
that in connection with all those entities, the
National Company Law Tribunal ordered
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. As a
result of which chance of recovery of principal
as well as interest amount from those entities
seems to be remote. Thus, the Company as
mandated by the provisions of law has to make
good such losses of the concerned Provident
Fund Trust. So far, an amount of ¥ 1.91 crore
has already been paid by the Company towards
this end. Therefore, the balance amount of
X 12.02 crore (X 11.65 crore + %¥2.28 crore — X
1.91 crore) should have been provided for by
the Company in its books of accounts during
the financial year 2021-22. Non-provisioning of
the same has resulted in understatement of
Provisions under Non-current Liabilities by X
12.02 crore with the  corresponding
overstatement of profit for the year by an equal
amount.

% 6992.08

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (BL) is a subsidiary of the
Company.

eThe total cumulative interest on the defaulting
investments have been provided for in the BL’s
books as on 31st March 2022.

eAgainst investments in M/s DHFL where the
principal invested amount was ¥ 2.10 crore, Balmer
Lawrie Staff Provident Fund (BPSPF) has already
received X 1.02 crore and the net loss of ¥ 1.08
crore have already been provided as on 31.03.22.
eFor other investments in M/s IL&FS, M/s Jorabat
Shillong Expressway Limited and M/s Reliance
Capital, principal amount totalling to ¥ 9.82 crore,
the final orders of Hon’ble NCLT are yet to be
received, pending which, the amount of expected
loss/ anticipatory provision remains completely
indeterminate and since the final recoverable
amount is not predictable or known currently, BL
has not made any provision for the same.

eThe Company, BL is liable, as per the BLSPF
Trust Rules, to make good any losses to BLSPF to
ensure that the minimum declared rate of interest
(currently @8.10% for FY 2021-22 notified in the
month of June 2022) by the Government of India for
any year is fully paid to all the beneficiaries. Also,
after provisioning of interest for the year, BLSPF
continues to carry the surplus balance in addition to
the liability on account of the beneficiaries, including
their contribution and cumulative interest credited till
31st March 2022.

eEven after payment of interest at the old declared
rates @ 8.50% for the previous years (to the
employees who have superannuated, resigned or
transferred), there is surplus balance available with
the BLSPF, implying no further requirement of fund
infusion by BL as on 31.03.2022.

¢In view of the above clarifications, it is amply clear
no further provision is required to be made in the
books as on 31.03.2022. Based on internal
discussions and review with the C&AG, the
Company, BL proposes to provide for 50% of the
original investments of ¥ 9.82 crore during FY 2022-
23. Necessary adjustments in the provision figures
shall be made on receipt of the final orders of
Hon’ble NCLT.

eThe Company, BL further reiterates that it shall
continue to make good the losses as and when
required as per BLSPF Trust Rules.

Thus, it can be seen that based on the above facts,
the Company, BL has no requirement of provision
currently in the books and hence there is no
understatement of Provisions or overstatement of
profit for the year.
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Sl.

No.

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of
the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial
Statements of Balmer
Lawrie Investments Limited for the year
ended 31°t March 2022 (Consolidated)

Management's Response

Balance Sheet:

Other Current Liabilities:
Non-financial Liabilities-Others:
lakh.

3 6423.26

An amount of ¥ 3.15 crore was received from
M/s. ONGC Limited for a contract which was
ultimately executed by Transafe Services
Limited (TSL), a joint venture company based
on a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
entered into between ONGC Limited and the
Company. As per the provisions of such MoU,
the Company would receive the payment from
ONGC Limited and in turn, transfer such
payment to TSL after deducting it commission
and other adjustments. It was, however, seen
that the Company after deducting its
commission of ¥ 0.14 crore had not transferred
the balance amount of ¥ 3.01 crore to TSL. It is
worthwhile to mention that, in the meantime,
TSL had been referred to National Company
Law Tribunal (NCLT) wherein Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process was ordered.
But the claims of the Company on TSL was not
considered by NCLT. As a result, the Company
adjusted X 3.01 crore against the outstanding
dues of TSL and had written off the balance
amount of dues from its books. In this regard,
Insolvency Resolution Professional of TSL
informed the Company that any amount
received from ONGC Limited had to be paid
back to TSL without adjusting the same against
the outstanding dues of TSL in the books of the
Company. Therefore, by adjusting the said
amount received from ONGC Limited against
the dues from TSL, there was not only short
provisioning of Liability but also understatement
of Bad Debts written off in respect of TSL.

Thus, non-provisioning of Liability of ¥ 3.01
crore towards TSL resulted in understatement
of Current Liabilities as well as understatement
of Bad Debts written off by ¥ 3.01 crore each
with a corresponding of restatement of Profit for
the year by ¥6.02 crore.

eThe amount(s) which the Company, BL has
adjusted and written back in its books are purely its
operational dues. The letter dated 29.10.2020 of
the IRP (appointed by Hon’ble NCLT) of TSL also
acknowledges the dues of the Company, BL and
also mentions the fact that the Company, BL can
release the payments to TSL after adjusting (i) its
claim of marketing commission for ONGC related
projects and (ii) past dues of the Company, BL
since the CIRP commencement date i.e.
21.11.2019.

eInvoices of Operational dues raised on TSL after
21.11.2019 amounts to ¥ 2.73 crore. Hence,
adjustment is legally permitted by BL.

eBL, the Company has written back a sum of ¥ 3.01
crore received from M/s ONGC Limited in its books.
Simultaneously, it has written off its dues from TSL
in its books arising out of provision of manpower,
rent, electricity and other related amounts for
operational needs.

eHence, the question of understatement of current
liabilities or of bad debts does not arise as pointed
out by Audit.

In view of the above facts, there is no
understatement of Current Liabilities/ Bad Debts or
any overstatement of Profit for the year.
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Sl.

No.

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of
the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial
Statements of Balmer
Lawrie Investments Limited for the year
ended 31°t March 2022 (Consolidated)

Management's Response

Balance sheet:
Non-current Liabilities:
Provision: Note-21: ¥ 6992.08 lakh

Current Liabilities:
Provision: ¥1952.91 lakh

The above heads of accounts do not include
¥ 13.29 crore (X 9.43 crore upto March 2020
and X3.86 crore for the financial years 2020-21
and 2021-22) being the rent and compensation
charges payable to Shyama Prasad Mookerjee
Port, Kolkata (Erstwhile Kolkata Port Trust or
KoPT) towards expired leasehold land in
respect of Industrial Packaging Unit at Kolkata.
The above unit was closed by the Company in
August 2020. The handing over of the
leasehold land is yet to be completed (June
2022). As a result, Shyama Prasad Mookerjee
Port, Kolkata kept on raising compensation
charges for such unauthorised occupancy at a
higher rate of three times than the normal lease
rental as per the Tariff Authority for Major Ports’
approved Land Policy Guidelines. The
Company, however, did not account for such
enhanced liability of ¥ 13.29 crore for the said
unauthorised occupancy.

Thus, non-provisioning of the same has
resulted in understatement of Provisions under
Current Liabilities by ¥ 1.93 crore as well as
understatement of Provisions under Non-
current Liabilites by ¥11.36 crore with
corresponding overstatement of Profit for the
year ¥ 13.29 crore.

eThe lease agreement between the Company, BL
and KoPT for use of the land at Industrial
Packaging Plant at Kolkata (IPK) of KoPT by the
Company, BL were continuing since a long time.
The agreement which expired, was due for renewal
from time to time and discussions were held
between both the parties to renew the same.

¢In the meanwhile, the Company closed down its
IPK unit in August 2020 due to continuous losses
and all the assets of the said plant were either
transferred or disposed off.

oKOPT has been continuing to raise monthly
compensation/rental invoices on IPK at the normal
rates only and the same continues till date i.e. June
2022 (last received invoice). These are being paid
by the Company BL on time by its IPK unit.
eReconciliation with KoPT have been completed till
December 2018. Further, full and final reconciliation
is going on currently and the said exercise shall be
completed very soon and shall be shared with
KoPT at the time of handing over the aforesaid
portions of land by the Company to KoPT in the
month of August 2022.

e The current invoices of KoPT mentions some old
dues including interest which is merely arising out
of reconciliation issues. The current detailed line
wise outstanding statement of KoPT is available
with the IPK unit of BL and sufficient progress has
been made by them in identifying the reasons of
short payments as reflecting in KoPT’s statements
which are primarily on account of non-accounting
by KoPT of certain payments in totality and TDS
deducted. This is a normal practice and on
submission of reconciliation statement along with
supporting documents, is expected to be resolved
without any further liability arising to the Company.
eHence, based on the above facts and
circumstances, the subsidiary company, BL does
not envisage any liability of such magnitude as
mentioned out by the Audit.

In view of the same, there is no understatement of
Provisions under Current Liabilities/ Non-current
Liabilities or any overstatement of Profit for the
year.

Further, CAG stated that Section 139(5) and 143(6)(a) of the Act are not applicable to the entities as
detailed in Annexure thereto, being private entities / entities incorporated in Foreign countries under the
respective laws, for appointment of their Statutory Auditor and for conduct of supplementary audit.
Accordingly, CAG has neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor conducted the supplementary audit of
those companies.
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Report of the Secretarial Auditor

The Board had appointed CS Binita Pandey, Partner at M/s. T. Chatterjee & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor for the FY 2021-2022 in compliance with the provisions of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Report of Secretarial Auditor is annexed and marked as Annexure-4.

The response of management with respect to the qualification/ adverse remarks/ reservation/disclaimer of
the Secretarial Auditors is as under:

SI. Observation /Comment/ Clarification from the Management
No. Qualification of the Secretarial
Auditors

1 Regulation 17(1)(b) of the| We are a Government Company and as is evident from
Securities and Exchange Board | our shareholding pattern, President of India has a majority
of India (Listing Obligations and| shareholding in our Company.

Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations 2015 (“Listing | As per the Articles of Association of the Company so long
Regulations”) during the period| as the Company remains a Government Company, the
01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022 due to | President of India shall be entitled to appoint one or more
absence of adequate number of | person(s) to hold office as Director(s) on the Board and
Independent Directors on the| also to appoint one or more such Director(s) as Managing
Board of the Company. or Whole-time Director(s) of the Company. Accordingly,
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas (MOP&NG), being the
administrative Ministry directs the Company every time
there is a change in appointment of Directors is required.
The direction of MOP&NG is awaited in this regard.

2 Para 3.1.4 of the Guidelines on| We are a Government Company and as it is evident from
Corporate Governance for| our shareholding pattern, President of India has majority
Central Public Sector | shareholding in our Company.

Enterprises, 2010 and Second

proviso to Section 149(1)(a) of | As per the Articles of Association of the Company so long
the Companies Act, 2013 read | as the Company remains a Government Company, the
with Rule 3 of the Companies| President of India shall be entitled to appoint one or more
(Appointment and Qualification of | person(s) to hold office as Director(s) on the Board and
Directors) Rules, 2014 for the| also to appoint one or more such Director(s) as Managing
period 24-07-2021 to 01-01-2022 | or Whole-time Director(s) of the Company. Accordingly,
due to absence of adequate| Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas (MOP&NG), being the
number of Independent Directors | administrative Ministry directs the Company every time
on the Board of the Company. there is a change in appointment of Directors is required.

The direction of MOP&NG is awaited.

3 Regulation 17(1)(c) of the Listing| We are a Government Company and as it is evident from
Regulation for the period 01-04-| our shareholding pattern, President of India has majority
2021 to 31-03-2022 due to| shareholdingin our Company.
absence of adequate number of
Directors on the Board of the| As per the Articles of Association of the Company so long
Company. as the Company remains a Government Company, the

President of India shall be entitled to appoint one or more
person(s) to hold office as Director(s) on the Board and
also to appoint one or more such Director(s) as Managing
or Whole-time Director(s) of the Company. Accordingly,
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas (MOP&NG), being the
administrative Ministry directs the Company every time
there is a change in appointment of Directors is required.
The direction of MOP&NG is awaited.
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SI. Observation /Comment/ Clarification from the Management
No. Qualification of the Secretarial
Auditors

4 Regulation 18(1)(b) of the Listing| Same as explanation provided in Serial No. 2 and 3
Regulations, Section 177(2) of| above.

the Companies Act, 2013 and
Para 4.1.1 of the Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector
Enterprises, 2010 for the period
24-07-2021 to 31-03-2022 since
the number of Independent
Directors in the Audit Committee
of the Company were below the
threshold limits due to insufficient
number of Independent Directors
on Board.

5 Regulation 19(1)(c) of the Listing| Same as explanation provided in Serial No. 2 and 3
Regulations and Section 178(1)| above.

of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the period 24-07-2021 to 31-03-
2022 since the number of
Independent Directors in the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company were
below the threshold limits due to
insufficient number of
Independent Director on Board.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has inter-alia taken the following measures to ensure that an adequate internal financial
control exists:

- Appointment of Internal Auditor as per Section 138 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,
2014 as well as Secretarial Auditor as per Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

- The Company has adopted the following policies apart from the Code of Conduct applicable to the
Board Members and Senior Management:

+ ‘Related Party Transactions Policy’;
= Policy for determining ‘Material subsidiaries’;
e “Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information”;

e “Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Designated Persons and
immediate relative of Designated Persons” and

*  “Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy” of the Company.

The internal audit for FY 2021-2022 was carried out by M/s. Bhattacharyya Roychaudhuri & Associates
and a detailed report thereof was submitted to the Board of Directors. In the said internal audit report the
auditor has not expressed any adverse remark or qualification.

In addition, the Company also follows the Guidelines on Capital Restructuring of Central Public Sector
Enterprises. The aforesaid policies are available on the website of the Company.

Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operation in future

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which may have
an impact on the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.
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Vigilance Cases

No vigilance cases were reported, disposed off nor there are any such cases pending during the year.
Constitution of Internal Committee

The Company has no employees of its own. The requirement for constituting an Internal Committee under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 did not
arise.

Maintenance of Cost Records

The requirement of maintenance of cost records is not applicable to your Company.

Procurement from MSMEs as per Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises
(MSEs) Order, 2012

The Company is formed for temporary purpose and is not having any business and hence the Company
has neither had taken any target nor made any procurement from MSMEs during the FY 2021-2022.

Annual Return and Weblink

In terms of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, the Company shall
place a copy of the Annual Return (MGT-7) for FY 2021-2022 on the website of the Company after filing
the same with Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Company has already placed a copy of the Annual Return
for FY 2020-21 on the website of the Company, link of which is:

https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/admin/uploads/Form MGT7 compressed.pdf

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company compliant of the Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of
Company Secretary’s of India and are mandatory.

Business Responsibility Report

Your Company is not engaged in any other business activity except to hold the equity shares of Balmer
Lawrie & Co. Ltd. and accordingly matters to be covered under Business Responsibility Report are not
applicable to your Company.

Appreciation

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continued guidance and support extended
by the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas & and other Ministries. Your Directors also acknowledge the
valuable support and services provided by Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd, its subsidiary. Your Directors
appreciate and value the trust imposed upon them by the members of the Company.

Registered Office: On behalf of Board of:
21, Netaji Subhas Road, Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.
Kolkata-700001

[Sandip Das] [Mrityunjay Jha]
Director Director
Date: 12t August, 2022 (DIN 08217697) (DIN 08483795)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance and Guidelines thereon

Your Company with limited business activity has always strived for better return to its shareholders by strictly
governing its activities, in terms of cutting down un-necessary cost and emphasizing on maximizing growth in
the area of interest income from Bank Term/Fixed deposits.

The framework of your Company’s Corporate Governance Policy, is based on the following principles:
= Framing the composition/size of the Board of Directors (subject to direction from the Administrative
Ministry and in accordance with the SEBI (‘Listing Regulations’), 2015 and Companies Act, 2013)
commensurate with the activity of the Company;

= Ensuring timely flow of information to the Board and Board Committees to enable them to discharge
their functions, effectively;

= Safeguarding integrity of the Company’s financial reporting;

= Ensuring a sound system of internal control;

= Timely and adequate disclosure to all its stakeholders;

= Transparency and accountability;

= Compliance with all applicable Rules and Regulations;

= Fair and equitable treatment to all its shareholders and investors.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (‘THE BOARD?)
Composition
The Board as on 31st March, 2022 consisted of 3 (three) Directors, which included a Non-executive and Non-
Independent Chairman who being the Director (Finance) of the subsidiary company, namely, Balmer Lawrie
& Co. Ltd is an ex-officio member, 2 Non-executive Directors, which includes one woman Independent Director
and one Non Independent (government nominee) Director. Your Company does not have any functional
director on its Board.

The brief profile of Directors as on the date of signing of this report is set out as under:

Shri Sandip Das (DIN 08217697)
Non-Executive Director, Ex-Officio Member

Shri Sandip Das was appointed as an additional, Non-Executive Director of the Company on 51" May, 2020 by
the Board of Directors, based on the direction of the MoPNG. He was further appointed as Non-Executive
Director (Ex-Officio) of the Company at the 19" AGM of the Company held on 25" September, 2020.

Shri Sandip Das is a Bachelor of Commerce from St. Xavier’s college, Kolkata and a member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Shri Sandip Das is Director (Finance) & CFO of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. Shri Sandip Das has more than 29
years of experience in Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. During his career in Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd., he has worked
in core business areas in both manufacturing and services verticals at multiple level as well as in the corporate
finance function.

Shri Sandip Das also holds the position of Non-executive Director in Visakhapatnam Port Logistic Park Limited,
which is a Subsidiary of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. He also holds position of Non-Executive Director in Balmer
Lawrie-Van Leer Limited and as Commissioner in PT Balmer Lawrie Indonesia which are Joint Ventures of
Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.
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Shri Mrityunjay Jha (DIN 08483795),
Government Nominee Director, Non-Executive Director

Shri Mrityunjay Jha was appointed as a Non-Executive Government Nominee Director on 14t January, 2021
by the Board of Directors based on the directions of the MoPNG. Shri Mrityunjay Jha has over 29 years of
experience in Government of India. He started his carrier in the Ministry of Power, where he handled
administration of the Ministry and financial matters of PSUs of Ministry of Power viz., NTPC, NHPC, Power
Grid and PFC etc. Thereafter he worked in Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment, where he handled
the administrative and financial matters of Seven national institutes of disabilities and a PSU named ALIMCO.
Thereafter he worked in Ministry of Minority Affairs and was involved in preparation of all the schemes for
welfare of minorities. At present he is working in Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas as
DS(Parliament/Gen.). He has rich experience in handling the administration and financial matters of various
ministries, Autonomous and Statutory bodies and PSUs. He was also Government Nominee Director in Gail
Gas Ltd. w.e.f. 15.06.2019 to 19.12.2020.

Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166)
Government Nominee Director, Non-Executive Director

Shri Shyam Singh Mahar (DIN: 08511166) was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of Non-
Executive, Government Nominee Director of the Company with effect from 1st July, 2022, in line with the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and pursuant to the nomination letter
bearing reference No.CA-31032/1/2021-PNG-37493 dated 14" June, 2022 as received from the Ministry of
Petroleum & Natural Gas. Shri Shyam Singh Mahar is a Bachelor of Science (Physics Hons) from Delhi
University. He is currently working as the Deputy Secretary (Admin) under the Ministry of Petroleum and
Natural Gas, Government of India.

Meetings & Attendances
The Board met five times during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022. The dates of the Board Meetings

held during the Financial Year ended 318t March, 2022 and attendance of each director at the respective Board
Meetings and the last AGM are given hereunder:

Name of Directors Date of the Board Meetings Date of
AGM
16t April | 29t June 10t 12t 11t 2gth
2021 2021 August |November| February | September

2021 2021 2022 2021
Shri Sandip Das v 4 4 4 v v
Shri Mrityunjay Jha v v LOA v v v
Smt Perin Devi* v LOA 4 LOA NA v
Shri Ajay Singhal’ v v NA NA NA NA
Smt. Shilpa Shashikant v v v v v v

Patwardhan

#Smt. Perin Devi Rao ceased to be a Non-executive Government Nominee Director w.e.f. 2" January, 2022.
“Shri Ajay Singhal ceased to be a Non-executive Independent Director w.e.f. 24t July, 2021.

Directorship & Committee Positions

The composition of Board of Directors as on 315t March, 2022 and the number of other Boards or Committees
in which the Director is a member/chairperson are enumerated as follows:
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Name of the Director, Total No. of Names of the other Number of Number of
designation and Directorship Listed entities in memberships post
category of directorship in other which the director in of Chairperson

Companies is a director and Committee(s) | in Committee
the category of other of other
directorship Companies Companies
Shri Sandip Das, Ex- 3 Balmer Lawrie & 5 1
Officio, Non- Executive Company Limited -
Director Director (Finance) and
Chief Financial Officer
Shri Mrityunjay Jha, 0 0 0 0
Government Nominee
Director
Smt. Shilpa Shashikant 0 0 0 0
Patwardhan,
Independent Director

Disclosure of Relationship between Directors inter-se
No relationship between Directors inter-se exists.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-executive Directors

As on 318t March, 2022, the number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non- Executive Directors
are as follows:

Name of Number of Percentage
Non-executive Director shares and of shares

convertible and

instruments | convertible

instruments
Shri Sandip Das NIL NIL
Shri Mrityunjay Jha NIL NIL
Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan NIL NIL

Weblink where details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Director is disclosed.
https://www.balmerlawrie.com/blinv/corp_announcements.php

Chart / Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors

The Company being a Government Company under the administrative control of the Ministry of Petroleum &
Natural Gas (MoP&NG), the power to appoint Directors (including Independent Directors) vests with the
Government of India. The Independent Directors are selected by Government of India from a mix of eminent
personalities having requisite expertise and experience in diverse fields. In view thereof, the Board of Directors
are not in a position to identify the list of core skills / expertise / competencies required by a Director in the
context of company’s business and sector, as required under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Reasons of resignation of Independent Director(s)

None of the Independent Director(s) resigned before the expiry of their tenure. However, Shri Ajay Singhal,
Independent Director had ceased to be a director of the Company during the Financial Year 2021-2022 owing
to the completion of his tenure of nomination by the administrative ministry.

Confirmation regarding Independent Directors

As per Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with exemption granted to Government Companies
vide Notification No, G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 (as amended vide Notification No. G.S.R. 582(E)
dated 13th June, 2017, Notification No, S.O. 802(E) dated 23rd February, 2018 and Notification No. G.S.R.
151(E) dated 2nd March, 2020), an Independent Director is a Director, who in the opinion of the Administrative
Ministry is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience. As already stated, all the
Directors of the Company including Independent Directors are appointed by the Administrative Ministry.
Further, the mechanism of evaluation of the Independent Directors as stated in paragraph VIl of Schedule IV
to the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply in the case of a Government company, if the requirements in
respect of matters specified in the said paragraph are specified by the concerned Ministries or Departments
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of the Central Government. Since, the evaluation of performance of all the Directors, including the Independent
Directors is carried out by the Administrative Ministry and the Department of Public Enterprises, the Board of
Directors is not in a position to give the confirmation as required under para C 2(i) of Schedule V to Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as
amended).

Committees of the board

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed by the Board on 23 September, 2002. The terms of reference of Audit
Committee have been amended by the Board of Directors w.e.f. 11t February, 2022, in accordance with the

amendments in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee
The revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee, are as follows:

a) Investigate into any matter referred to it by the Board and for this purpose, shall have full access to
information contained in the records of the Company and external professional advice, if necessary;

b) Investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

c) Seek information from any employee;

d) Obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

e) Secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary;

f) Oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

g) Recommend the appointment, reappointment and if required the replacement or removal of statutory
auditors, fixation of audit fee, terms of appointment and also approval for payment for any other services;

h) Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit
process;

i) Review with the management the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before
submissions to the Board, focusing primarily on:

i. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s report.

i. Anychanges in accounting policies and practices.

iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgement by management.

iv. Examination of the auditor’s report and Qualification in draft audit report.

v. Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit findings.

vi. The going concern assumption.

vii. Compliance with accounting standards.

vii. Compliance with listing and legal requirements concerning financial statements.

ix. Disclosure and approval of any related party transactions and approval of any subsequent material
modifications of Related Party Transactions , whether or not, the Company is a Party to the same;
Provided that only those members of the Audit Committee, who are independent directors, shall
approve Related Party Transactions and subsequent material modifications.

ixa. granting omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions proposed to be entered into by the
Company subject to the applicable provisions and carrying out the review thereof.

ixb. Defining “material modifications” to Related Party Transactions.

X. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

j) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

k) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

) Review with the management, performance of the statutory and internal auditors, the adequacy of
internal control systems;
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zb)

zc)

zd)
ze)

Review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the Internal Audit Department,
staff, seniority of official heading the department reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;
Discuss with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon;
Review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;
Discuss with statutory auditors before the audit commences, nature and scope of audit as well as to
have post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
Review the financial and risk management policies of the Company;
Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture-holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;
Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism:
Discuss with the auditors periodically about internal control systems, the scope of audit including the
observations of the auditors and review of the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board;
Ensure compliance of internal control systems;
The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall attend the Annual General Meetings of the Company to
provide any clarification on matters relating to audit sought by the members of the Company;
Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience &
background, etc. of the candidate;
Review the utilization of loans and/or advances from /investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary company exceeding Rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever
is lower including existing loans/advances/investments existing as on the date of coming into force of
this provision.
Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.
Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.
The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
(1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
(2) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors, if any;
(3) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
(4) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor, if any shall be
subject to review by the audit committee.
(5) statement of deviations, if any:
(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted
to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).
(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

Composition and attendance during the year

As on 31st March, 2022, the Committee consisted of 3 (three) members and all of them, including the
Chairperson of the Committee were Non-Executive Directors. The Committee was reconstituted on 10"
August, 2021 and 2™ January, 2022 during the Financial Year 2021-2022.

As of 318t March, 2022, the following were the members of the Committee:

Names Position Held
Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan Chairperson
Shri Sandip Das Member
Shri Mrityunjay Jha Member

The members of the Audit Committee are all financially literate and some have expertise in accounting, finance
and general management matters. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary to the Audit Committee.
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Meetings & Attendances
The Committee met 4 (four) times during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022. Attendance of the
Committee Members at the meetings during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022, is enumerated below:

Name of the Directors Date of the Audit Committee Meetings

12t June, | 10™ August 12th 11t February

2021 & 2021 November 2022
29t June, 2021
2021

Shri Ajay Singhal * v NA NA NA
Smt. Shilpa Shashikant v v v v
Patwardhan
Shri Sandip Das v v v v
Smt. Perin Devi # NA v LOA NA
Shri Mrityunjay Jha $ NA LOA v v

"Shri Ajay Singhal ceased to be a Non-executive Independent Director w.e.f. 24t July, 2021.

#Smt. Perin Devi Rao was earlier inducted as member of the Committee w.e.f. 10" August 2021 and she
subsequently ceased to be a Non-executive Government Nominee Director w.e.f. 2" January, 2022.

$ Shri Mrityunjay Jha had been appointed as a member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 101 August 2021.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was formed by the Board on 28" March, 2015. The Committee
was reconstituted at the Board meeting dated 18™ July, 2019, 21st October 2019 , 10" February, 2020, 27t
January, 2021 and on 10t August, 2021. The terms of reference of the Committee were amended vide
Resolution passed on 11t February, 2022 in accordance with the amendments in SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015.

It may be noted that except Shri Ajay Singhal and Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan, Independent Directors,
none of the other Directors received any remuneration/compensation, including sitting fee, for attending
meetings of the Board and/or any Board Committees and the appointment of the Directors on the Board of the
Company is done as per the direction of the Administrative Ministry — MoPNG which determines all the terms
of appointment of the appointees. Hence, there is no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-
executive directors vis-a-vis the Company, other than payment of sitting fee to the Independent Director, which
is detailed elsewhere.

Further, the Company being a Special Purpose Vehicle was formed only to hold the shares of Balmer Lawrie
& Co. Ltd. offloaded by IBP Ltd. does not have any employees of its own. The services of inter-alia Company
Secretary who has been placed on secondment by Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (BL) is pursuant to a Service
Agreement between the Company and BL.

In the given situation the role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is expected to be limited.

Terms of reference of NRC (as amended)

The terms of reference of NRC are as under:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the policy ensure that —

a. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

b. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and
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C. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

1A.  For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The
person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the
capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the

Committee may:

(a) use the services of an external agency, if required;

(b) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
(c) consider the time commitments of the candidates.

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

3. Deuvising a policy on Board diversity;

4. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management

in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall
specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual directors
to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent
external agency and review its implementation and compliance;

. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

6. Recommending to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to the senior management.

Note: Your Company being a Government Company, vide Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5" June,
2015 as amended by Notification No. GSR 582(E) dated 13" June, 2017 and notification No. GSR 802(E)
dated 23" February, 2018, has been exempted from applicability of section 178(2), (3) and (4) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Further, as per Section 149(6) read with exemption granted to Government Companies vide Notification
No. GSR 463(E) dated 5t June, 2015, the Independent Director is a Director, who in the opinion of the
Administrative Ministry is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise experience. In view of the
above, the role of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, in context of directors, would be limited in the
above mentioned serial (1), (1A), (2), (3), (4), (5) and (6).

Composition:

The Members of the Committee, including the Chairperson being Independent Director, are all non-executive
Directors. The Committee was reconstituted on 10t August 2021. As of 31st March, 2022, the Committee

consisted of the following 3 (three) members:

Names Position Held
Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan Chairperson
Shri Sandip Das Member
Shri Mrityunjay Jha Member

During the Financial Year 2021-22 one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee took place.
The attendance of the Committee Members at the meeting, is enumerated below:

Names

NRC meeting dated 11-02-2022

Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan

v

Shri Sandip Das

v

Shri. Mrityunjay Jha

v
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Formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors

The Company being a government company and the directors, including Independent Directors are appointed
as per the direction of the Administrative Ministry. In the given situation the Committee is not in a position to
set up evaluation criteria of Independent Directors as the same is being done by the Government. It may be
pertinent to mention that as per the Schedule IV to Companies Act, 2013 - the provisions of Paragraph V and
Paragraph VIII shall not apply in the case of a Government company as defined under clause (45) of section
2 of the Companies Act, 2013, if the requirements in respect of matters specified in these paragraphs are
specified by the concerned Ministries or Departments of the Central Government or as the case may be, the
State Government and such requirements are complied with by the Government companies.

Remuneration of Directors

The appointment of the Directors on the Board of the Company is done as per the direction of the
Administrative Ministry — MoPNG which determines all the terms of appointment of the appointees.

None of the Directors, received any remuneration/compensation, including sitting fee, for attending meetings
of the Board and/or any Board Committees except Shri Ajay Singhal and Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan,
Independent Directors who received sitting fee for attending the meetings of the Board and Committees and
plus reimbursement of reasonable travelling, hotels and other expenses incurred in execution of their duties
as Director and Member of any Committee.

Hence, there is no pecuniary relationship or transaction of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the Company
except as stated above.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

As on 318t March 2022, the Committee consisted of 3 (three) members out of which 1 was a Non- Executive
Director, 1 was an Independent Director and 1 was a Government Nominee Director. The Committee was
headed by Shri Sandip Das, Non-Executive Director. Shri Abhishek Lahoti, Company Secretary acted as the
Compliance officer. The details of shareholders’ complaints during the FY 2021-22 are as under:

Opening Number of Number of Number of Number of
number of complaints complaints complaints not pending
complaints received resolved solved to the complaints

as on 1st during the during the satisfaction of the as on 31st
April 2021 year year shareholders during | March, 2022

the year
0 6 6 0 0

Risk Management Committee

The Company does not have any business apart from holding the shares of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. and is
a Special Purpose Vehicle formed for temporary purpose. However, for compliance of provisions of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as
amended) pertaining to Risk Management Committee, the Board had constituted the Risk Management
Committee on 11th February, 2022, fixed its terms of reference and approved the Risk Management Plan for
the Company.

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee is as follows:
(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:
(a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in
particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks),
information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.

(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate
risks associated with the business of the Company;
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(3) To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems;

(4) To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

(5) To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations
and actions to be taken;

(6) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to
review by the Risk Management Committee.

(7) The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees, in instances where
there is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the framework laid down by the board of
directors.

(8) Monitoring and reviewing of Risk Management Plan.

(9) The Risk Management Committee shall have powers to seek information from any employee, obtain
outside legal or other professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it
considers necessary.

Note: The Company being a special purpose vehicle, does not carry out any business other than holding

shares of 61.80% equity shares of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. Hence, the requirements under Regulation 21 is

not feasible for the Company.

Composition

As on 31t March 2022, the Risk Management Committee consisted of three members out of which one was
Non-Executive Government Nominee Director, one was a Non-Executive Director and one was an
Independent Directors. The Committee was headed by Shri Mrityunjay Jha, Government Nominee Director.

The Composition of the Risk Management Committee as on 31st March, 2022 was as follows:

1. Shri Mrityunjay Jha, Government Nominee Director - Chairperson
2. Shri Sandip Das, Non-Executive Director - Member
3. Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan, Independent Director - Member

The Committee held 2 (two) Meetings during the Financial Year 2021-2022, as detailed hereunder:

Name of the Member Risk Management Committee Meetings held
during the Financial Year 2021-22
11t February, 2022 28t March, 2022
Shri Mrityunjay Jha \ \
Shri Sandip Das \ \
Smt. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan \ \

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
(i) Details of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and Special Resolution(s) passed thereat:

Year AGM Venue Date & Time Details of the
No. Special
Resolution(s)
passed
2019 18th G.D. Birla Sabhagar, 18t September, Nil
29, Ashutosh Choudhry Avenue, 2019 at 2:30 p.m.
Kolkata — 700 019
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Year AGM Venue Date & Time Details of the
No. Special
Resolution(s)
passed
2020 19t VC/OAVM 25t September, Nil
2020 at 4:00 p.m.
2021 20th VC/OAVM 28th September, Nil
2021 at 4.00 p.m.

(i) Special Resolution(s) passed last year through Postal Ballot:

During the Financial Year 2021-22, Special Resolution w.r.t. Increase in Authorized Share Capital of the
Company and consequent amendment to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of
the Company had been passed through the exercise of postal ballot on 22" May, 2021.

(iii) Whether any Special Resolution(s) is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot:
No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS

The quarterly results (un-audited) and audited financial results were submitted to the Stock Exchanges within
stipulated timeline. Simultaneously, the said results were published in the newspapers and also uploaded on
the website of the Company.

Such financial results and other notices, whether quarterly or annual or otherwise, were published in ‘Aajkal’
(Bengali) , Business Standard (English) and Business Standard (Hindi).

The Company’s website www.blinv.com provides comprehensive information of the Company, including
information on financial results (quarterly and annual), Report of the Auditors and Directors on the annual
financial statement, statutory information, various policies and codes adopted by the Company and corporate

announcements.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
Details of Annual General Meeting 2021-22.

Date & Time

27t September, 2022 at 4:00 p.m.

Venue

As per the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, read with
General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, read with
General Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8th December, 2021, read with
General Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021 read with
General Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), this AGM is scheduled to be held through
VC/OAVM and voting for items to be transacted in the Notice to this AGM
shall be only through remote electronic voting process or electronic voting
during the AGM. Hence, physical attendance of the Members at the AGM
venue is not required at the 21st AGM. The detailed instructions for
participation and voting is available in the notice of the 215t AGM.

Financial year

1t April, 2021 to 315t March, 2022.

Book Closure Dates

Wednesday, 21st September, 2022 to Tuesday, 27th September, 2022
(both days inclusive).

Dividend Payment Date

Upon declaration at the ensuing 215t Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 27t September, 2022,
dividend shall be paid to the shareholders holding shares as on 201" September, 2022, (End of Day) (being
the cut-off date) within statutory period of 30 days from the date of declaration.
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Dividend History & Amount of Unclaimed Dividend to be transferred to the ‘Investor’s Education and

Protection Fund’

Date on which, Total amount Amount of % Of Due date of
dividend declared / of unclaimed unclaimed transfer to the
Financial Year Dividend (in dividend dividend “Investors’
Rs.) as on 31st to total Education and
& % March, 2022 dividend Protection
(in Rs.)* Fund”
22n September 2015 | 27,74,65,862.50 3337875.00 1.20 29t October,
2014-15 125% 2022
22n September 2016 | 27,74,65,862.50 3579688.00 1.29 29t October,
2015-16 125% 2023
14th September, 2017 | 37,73,53,573.00 | 4725048.00 1.25 21st October,
2016-17 170% 2024
12th September, 2018 | 53,27,34,456.00 3512616.00 0.66 19t October,
2017-18 240% 2025
18t September, 2019 | 75,47,07,146.00 2611812.00 0.35 25t October,
2018-19 340% 2026
25t September, 2020 832397587.50 2812786.50 0.34 1st November,
2019-20 375% 2027
28t September, 2021 843,496,222.00 2913261.00 0.35 4t November,
2020-21 380% 2028

*The actual amount to be transferred in IEPF Fund would differ from the same on account of adjustments
made by the Bank or further claims made by the respective shareholders.

Listing of Equity Shares

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed in Calcutta and Bombay Stock Exchanges, details whereof are

given hereunder:

7, Lyons Range, Dalhousie,
Kolkata — 700 001
website: www.cse-india.com

Stock Exchanges Stock Code
BSE Ltd. 532485
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001
website: www.bseindia.com
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 12638

The Annual Listing Fees of BSE Ltd. and the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited for the Financial Year 2021-

2022 has been paid. Equity shares of your Company are actively traded in BSE Ltd.

ISIN Number allotted to the Company is: INE525F01017

Monthly High and Low quotes on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (‘BSE’) during the period from April

2021 to March 2022

Month High (%) | Low (¥) | Month High (%) Low (%) | Month High (X) | Low (%)

Apr-21 484.95 433.00 | Aug-21 489.65 456.00 | Dec-21 405.00 381.05
May-21 510.00 447.10 | Sept-21 487.00 401.35 | Jan-22 424.00 372.00
June-21 498.70 465.05 | Oct-21 434.00 404.65 | Feb-22 396.00 362.25
Jul-21 497.00 464.95 | Nov-21 419.10 391.20 | Mar-22 385.90 365.00
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Comparative Analysis of S&P BSE SmallCap Index vis-a-vis monthly closing prices of the Equity
shares of Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd. (‘BLI’) as quoted on BSE Limited:

Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd. share price performance in comparison
S&P BSE SmallCap Index
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Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

The share registry functions, in both physical and de-mat segments are handled by a single common agency,
namely, CB Management Services (P) Ltd (‘CB’). CB is registered with SEBI and is based in Kolkata, having
its corporate office at P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata — 700 019, Tel: +91 33 40116700, Email: rta@cbmsl.com

Share Transfer System

The power to approve requests for registration of physical share transfer, transmission,
subdivision/consolidation of shares, issue of duplicate share certificate in lieu of lost/misplaced original share
certificate(s), replacement of share certificate(s) in lieu of torn/defaced share certificate(s) and issue of share
certificate(s) upon rematerialization, etc., has been delegated by the Board to a separate Board Committee,
which was formed in the name and style of “Committee of Directors of transfer of share etc”. The Committee
as on 31st March, 2022 comprised of three Board members, namely, Shri Sandip Das, Smt Shilpa Shashikant
Patwardhan and Shri Mrityunjay Jha. Share certificates/letter of entitlement after registration of transfer,
transmission etc., are normally dispatched within the statutory time line. The share related activities of
Company, are being looked after by its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (‘(RSTA’), under the supervision of
the Company Secretary of your Company. Shri Debabrata Dutt, Practicing Company Secretary carried out the
Reconciliation of Share capital audit on a periodic basis.

SEBI has recently amended relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 to disallow listed companies from accepting request for transfer of securities which are held
in physical form, with effect from 1st April, 2019. The shareholders who continue to hold shares and other types
of securities of listed companies in physical form even after this date, will not be able to lodge the shares with
company / its RTA for further transfer. They will need to convert them to demat form compulsorily if they wish
to effect any transfer. Only the requests for transmission and transposition of securities in physical form, will
be accepted by the listed companies / their RTAs.
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Categories of Shareholders as on 31t March, 2022:

Category Total no. of Equity % (On the total Equity
Shares holding)
Promoter & its Associates: 13246098 59.67
President of India
Foreign National/NRI 153491 0.69
Indian Financial Institution, Mutual 31582 0.14
Fund & Banks
Flls 744703 3.35
Bodies Corporate 2080117 9.37
Others 5941278 26.78
Total 22197269 100.00
Distribution of Shareholding as on 315t March, 2022:
Range of No. of % (on total No. of Shares %
Shares Shareholders number of (on the
in each shareholders) total no of
category Shares)
1-500 19260 92.66 92.66 6.10
501 — 1000 757 3.64 3.64 2.57
1001 — 2000 368 1.77 1.77 2.41
2001 — 3000 120 0.58 0.58 1.38
3001 — 4000 68 0.33 0.33 1.08
4001 — 5000 50 0.24 0.24 1.03
5001 — 10000 78 0.38 0.38 2.41
10001 - 50000 59 0.28 0.28 5.19
50001- 100000 13 0.06 0.06 3.98
And Above 12 0.06 0.06 73.85
Total 20785 100.00 100.00 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Equity shares of your Company are to be traded compulsorily in de-materialized mode and are available
for trading, in both the Depositories in India, i.e., National Securities Depository Ltd. (‘NSDL’) and Central
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (‘CDSL’).

As on 31st March, 2022, the distribution of Equity Shares held in physical and de-materialized mode, are
produced below:

Mode No’s % (to the total
paid-up capital)
Physical 171865 0.774
De-mat
1. NSDL 4193658 18.893
2. CDSL 17831746 80.333
Total 22197269 100.00

Your Company, for the Financial Year 2021-22, has paid the annual custody fee to both the Depositories, i.e.,
NSDL & CDSL.

Outstanding global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or any convertible
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity

The Company does not have any outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts
or warrants or any convertible instruments.
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Payment of Dividend through Electronic mode

The electronic mode brings efficiency and uniformity in electronic credit of the dividend amount. The
advantages include faster credit of remittance to beneficiary’s account, wider coverage with no limitations of
location in India.

Your Company accordingly encourages the use of electronic mode for payment of dividend, wherever
available. To avail such facility the shareholders, are requested to fill-in the mandate form thereby providing
the MICR code number of their bank and branch along with bank account number and other details to the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company, i.e., namely CB Management Services (P) Ltd. (where the
shares are being held in physical form) or to their Depository Participant (where the shares are being held in
dematerialized mode). Further, to update your bank account (in case of shares held in physical form) you are
requested to fill up and submit Forms ISR-1 and ISR-2 with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the
Company. In case of shares held in demat form, you are advised to contact your depository participant.

This would facilitate prompt encashment of dividend proceeds and enable the Company to reduce cost of
dividend distribution.

Address for Correspondences

All communications relating to share matters shall be addressed to —
Either -

C B Management Services (P) Ltd.
Unit: Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.,
P-22, Bondel Road,

Kolkata- 700 019

E-mail - rta@cbmsl.com

Phone No. 033-40116728.

-Or

The Company Secretary

Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.,

21, Netaji Subhas Road,

Kolkata — 700 001

E-mail — lahoti.a@balmerlawrie.com
Phone No. 033-22225227

Plant Location
Your Company does not carry out any business and therefore, it has not established any plant in any location.

List of All Credit Ratings obtained by the Company along with any revisions
Not applicable

DISCLOSURES
1) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the
interests of listed entity at large.

Apart from transactions with its subsidiary, Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (‘BL’), there was no other Related
Party Transaction. Further, the transactions with BL were all carried out at arm’s length and the disclosures
have been made in the Notes to the Annual Accounts. None of the transactions had any conflict with
interests of the Company. None of the transactions are material related party transaction.

2) Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock
exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets:

There has been no instance where there has been any non-compliance by the Company where penalties,
strictures were imposed on the Company by stock exchange(s) or the SEBI or any statutory authority, on
any matter related to capital markets.

The following fines were imposed by Stock Exchanges during last three financial years:
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Sr | Action Details of violation | Details of action taken | Observation/remarks of
No. | taken by Eg. Fines, warning | the Practising Company

letter, debarment, etc. Secretary

BSE Ltd. Non- compliance of Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of 5,36,900 vide letter | Regulation 17(1) was for
SEBI (LODR) dated August 19, 2019 | reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 bearing reference no. | control of the Company.
pertaining to the LIST/COMP/Reg.27(2) &
composition of the Reg. 17 to 21/Jun-
Board including 19/532485/157/2019-20
failure to appoint
woman director for
the quarter ended
June
2019.

BSE Ltd. | Non- compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 18(1) of | 2,14,760 vide letter | Regulation 18(1) was for
SEBI (LODR) | dated August 19, 2019 | reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 | bearing reference no. | control of the Company.
pertaining to the | LIST/COMP/Reg.27(2) &
constitution of audit | Reg. 17 to 21/Jun-
committee for the | 19/532485/157/2019-20
quarter ended June
2019.

BSE Ltd. | Non- compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 542,800 vide letter | Regulation 17(1) was for
SEBI (LODR) | dated October 31, 2019 | reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 | bearing reference no. | control of the Company.
pertaining to the | LIST/COMP/Reg.27(2) &
composition of the | Reg. 17 to 21/Sep-
Board for the quarter | 19/532485/219/2019-20
ended September’
2019.

BSE Ltd. Non- compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 18(1) of | 2,197,120 vide letter | Regulation 18(1) was for
SEBI (LODR) | dated October 31, 2019 | reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 | bearing reference no. | control of the Company.
pertaining to the | LIST/COMP/Reg.27(2) &
constitution of audit | Reg. 17 to 21/Sep-
committee for the | 19/532485/219/2019-20
quarter ended
September 2019.

BSE Ltd. Non- compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 19(1) | 2,117,120 vide letter | Regulation 19(1)/ 19(2)
19(2) of SEBI | dated October 31, 2019 | was for reasons beyond
(LODR) Regulations, | bearing reference no. | the control of the
2015 pertaining to | LIST/COMP/Reg.27(2) & | Company.
the constitution of | Reg. 17 to 21/Sep-
nomination and | 19/532485/219/2019-20
remuneration
committee for the
quarter ended
September 2019.

6. BSE Ltd. Non- compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of

Regulation 17(1) of | 1,148,000 vide letter | Regulation 17(1) was for
SEBI (LODR) | dated February 03, 2020 | reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 | bearing reference no. | control of the Company.
pertaining to the | LIST/COMP/Reg.27(2) &
composition of the | Reg. 17 to 21/Dec-
Board for the quarter | 19/532485/283/2019-20
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Sr | Action Details of violation | Details of action taken | Observation/remarks of
No. | taken by Eg. Fines, warning | the Practising Company

letter, debarment, etc. Secretary
ended December
2019.

7. BSE Ltd. | Non- Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 217,120 vide letter | Regulation  19(1)/19(2)
19(1)/19(2) of the | dated February 03, 2020 | was for reasons beyond
SEBI (LODR) | bearing reference no | the control of the
Regulations, 2015 | LIST/COMP/Reg.27(2) & | Company.
pertaining to| Reg. 17 to 21/Dec
constitution 19/532485/283/2019-20
Nomination &

Remuneration
Committee of for the
quarter ended
December, 2019.

8. BSE Ltd. Non- compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,36,900 via mail dated | Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) | July 02, 2020. reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to the
composition of the
Board for the quarter
ended March’ 2020.

9. BSE Ltd. | Non- Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 18(1) of | 94,400 via mail dated | Regulation 18(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) | July 02, 2020. reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to
constitution of audit
committee for the
quarter ended
March, 2020.

10. BSE Ltd. Non- Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 94,400 via mail dated | Regulation  19(1)/19(2)
19(1)/19(2) of the | July 02, 2020. was for reasons beyond
SEBI (LODR) the control of the
Regulations, 2015 Company.
pertaining to
constitution
Nomination &

Remuneration
Committee of for the
quarter ended
March, 2020.

11. BSE Ltd. Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,36,900 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to the
Composition of the
Board including
failure to appoint
woman director for
the quarter ended
June, 2020.

12. BSE Ltd. Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,42,800 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
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Sr | Action Details of violation | Details of action taken | Observation/remarks of
No. | taken by Eg. Fines, warning | the Practising Company

letter, debarment, etc. Secretary
pertaining to the The said fine has been
Composition of the waived off by BSE Ltd.
Board including vide e-mail dated 19t
failure to appoint April, 2021
woman director for
the quarter ended
September, 2020.

13. BSE Ltd. | Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,42,800 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to the The said fine has been
Composition of the waived off by BSE Ltd.
Board including vide e-mail dated 19t
failure to appoint April, 2021
woman director for
the quarter ended
December, 2020.

14. BSE Ltd. | Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,31,000 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to the
Composition of the
Board including
failure to appoint
woman director for
the quarter ended
March, 2021.

15. BSE Ltd. Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,36,900 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to the
Composition of the
Board including
failure to appoint
woman director for
the quarter ended
June, 2021.

16. BSE Ltd. Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,42,800 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to the
Composition of the
Board including
failure to appoint
woman director for
the quarter ended
September, 2021.

17. BSE Ltd. Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,42,800 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to the
Composition of the
Board including
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Sr | Action Details of violation | Details of action taken | Observation/remarks of
No. | taken by Eg. Fines, warning | the Practising Company

letter, debarment, etc. Secretary

failure to appoint
woman director for
the quarter ended
December, 2021.

18. BSE Ltd. Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 17(1) of | 5,31,000 Regulation 17(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.

pertaining to the
Composition of the
Board including
failure to appoint
woman director for
the quarter ended

March, 2022.

19. BSE Ltd. | Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 18(1) of | 2,12,400 Regulation 18(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to

constitution of Audit
Committee for the

quarter ended
March, 2022.

20. BSE Ltd. | Non-Compliance of | Fine imposed of Rs. | The non-compliance of
Regulation 19(1) of | 2,12,400 Regulation 19(1) was for
the SEBI (LODR) reasons beyond the
Regulations, 2015 control of the Company.
pertaining to
constitution of
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee for the
quarter ended
March, 2022.

The above does not include the fee paid to the Calcutta Stock Exchange for revocation of suspension of
dealing in securities of the Company w.e.f. 30" Nov 2021.

3) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy, and affirmation that no personnel has
been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Company does not have any employee , however, the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy. The said policy is available on the website of the Company at the following link:

http://www.blinv.com/Pdf/Whistle%20Blower%20policy%20&%20vigil%20mechanism.pdf

It is hereby affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

4) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements of SEBI Regulations and DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governance:

All mandatory requirements of applicable provisions of the SEBI Regulations and DPE Guidelines have
been complied with except as mentioned by the Secretarial Auditors and the Statutory Auditors (while
certifying the compliance of the Corporate Governance Regulations/Guidelines).

5) Details of adoption of the non-mandatory requirements
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6)

7)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

The Company has not adopted any non-mandatory requirements envisaged in the Schedule Il of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

Web link where policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ is disclosed
http://www.blinv.com/Pdf/Policy%200n%20determining%20material%20subsidiaries _amended.pdf

Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed

http://www.blinv.com/Pdf/Related%20Party%20Transactions%20Policy.pdf

Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities.

Since the Company has no business to carry, there are no commaodity price risks and no hedging activities
are carried out.

Confirmation of Compliance as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015.

It is hereby confirmed that each compliance has been complied with the requirements under Regulations
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (j) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 except Reg 17, 18 and 19 as enumerated in the disclosure above, due to reasons beyond the
control of the Company. Further, the Statutory Auditors’ certificate that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Boards’ Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 27th May, 2015, had formulated and
approved the following codes:

i) ‘Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information’
and

i) ‘Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insider’.

The aforesaid policies have been amended w.e.f. 1st April, 2019 in order to bring them in line with the
amendments in SEBI (Prohibition of Insider trading) Regulations, 2015 and the same has been uploaded
on the website of the Company www.blinv.com

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct (‘the Code’) for the Directors and Senior Management (who are one level below the
Board), came into being, w.e.f. 22" December, 2005. During the twelve months period ended 31st March,
2022, all the Directors of your Company and the Company Secretary (being the only member in the Senior
Management team) have complied with the Code and to that effect have given their individual declaration
to the Board. Since, your Company does not have any designated Chief Executive Officer, Shri Sandip
Das, has given a composite declaration on behalf of the Board and Senior Management, which is being
furnished in ‘Annexure 1A’, to this Report.

Total Fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditor.

The details of fees paid to the Statutory auditors is provided in Note 18 of the standalone Financial
Statements.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year NIL
b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year  NIL
c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year NIL

Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the directors of the Company have been
debarred from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company attached as Annexure ‘“1B’.
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15) There was no case where Board had not accepted the recommendation of any Committee in the FY 2021-
22.

16) Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account: Not Applicable
17) Other disclosures:

i) The Company has not accepted any deposit from public during the Financial Year.

i) Details of Presidential Directives issued by the Central Government and their compliance during the
year and also in the last three years. NONE

ii) Items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purposes of the business. NIL

iv) Expenses incurred which are personal in nature and incurred for the Board of Directors and Top
Management. NIL

v) Details of Administrative and office expenses as a percentage of total expenses vis-a-vis financial
expenses and reasons for increase.

vi) Administrative/Office Expenses is 34.70 % of the Total Expenses in the year 2021-22 and the same
was 51.83 % in the year 2020-21.

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS
Need based training is provided to the Directors.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company does not have any employee, however, the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle
Blower Policy. The said policy is available on the website of the Company at the following link:

http://www.blinv.com/Pdf/Whistle%20Blower%20policy%20&%20vigil%20mechanism.pdf

Registered Office: On behalf of Board of Directors
21, N. S. Road, Kolkata - 700 001 Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.
[Sandip Das] [Mrityunjay Jha ]
Date: 12" August, 2022 Director Director
(DIN 08217697) (DIN 08483795)
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Annexure 1A

CODE OF CONDUCT

Declaration on behalf of the Board and Senior Management as per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

I, Sandip Das, Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Board of Directors of Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd.,
hereby declare that myself, all the Directors and the Company Secretary (being only member in the Senior
Management team) of the Company, have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct (meant for the
Directors and Senior Management) for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022.

Sandip Das

(Non-Executive Director, Ex-Officio Member)

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th April, 2022
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To
The Members,
Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
21, Netaji Subhas Road
Kolkata 700001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited, having CIN: L65999WB2001GOI1093759, and having
Registered office at 21, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata — 700 001, listed on BSE Limited, Scrip Code- 532485
and the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, Scrip Code — 12638 (hereinafter referred as “Company”)
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the official portal of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, www.mca.gov.in ) as

considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31st
March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of

companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other

Statutory Authority
Serial | Name of the Directors DIN Date of Appointment in
No. Company*
1 Mrs. Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan 07008287 21-10-2019
2 Mr. Sandip Das 08217697 05-05-2020
Mr. Mrityunjay Jha 08483795 14-01-2021
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Further, during the Financial Year 2021-2022, Shri Ajay Singhal (DIN: 08187034) and Smt. Perin Devi Rao
(DIN: 07145051) had ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from 24t July, 2021 and 2
January, 2022 respectively.

* Date of appointment is as per details available at the official portal of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs

www.mca.gov.in

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity as Director on the Board is the responsibility of the

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata For T. Chatterjee & Associates
Date: 12t July, 2022 Practicing Company Secretaries
FRN No. - P2007WB067100
Binita Pandey - Partner
ACS : 41594, CP : 19730
UDIN: A041594D000606609
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
To
The Members of
Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter with Balmer Lawrie
Investments Limited (the Company).
2. This Certificate is required by the Company to be annexed with the Directors’ Report, in terms of Para

E of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”) for

further being sent to the members of the Company.

3. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the

Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022, as stipulated in:

i. Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V
to the aforesaid Listing Regulations issued by the SEBI and

ii. The Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010 (the
“Guidelines”) as issued by the Department of Public Enterprise (DPE) of Ministry of Heavy
Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India.

Management’s Responsibility

4. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and
documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.
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5. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company
complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations and the

Guidelines.

Auditor’s Responsibility

6. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations and the guidelines, our responsibility is to
express a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with
the specific requirements of the Listing Regulations and the Guidelines referred to in paragraph 3

above.

7. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance
Note on Reports or Certificatesfor Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply

with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and

Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

9. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks

associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria.

Our examination has been limited to a review of procedures & implementation thereof, adopted by the
company for ensuring the compliance of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Obligations
and the Guidelines. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on financial statements of the

company.

Opinion
Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations
given to us, and the representation given by management, we certify that the Company has complied

with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations and the

Guidelines, as applicable for the year ended 31 * March, 2022, referred to in paragraph 3 above, except

the following:

1. Regulation 17(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations during the period 01-04-2021 to 31- 03-2022 due
to absence of adequate number of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company.

2. Para 3.1.4 of the Guidelines for the period 24-07-2021 to 01-01-2022 due to absence of adequate
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number of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company.

3. Regulation 17(1)(c) of the Listing Regulation for the period 01-04-2021 to 31 -03- 2022 due to
absence of adequate number of Directors on the Board of the Company.

4. Regulation 18(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and Para 4.1.1 of the Guidelines for the period 24-
07-2021 to 31-03-2022 since the number of Independent Directors in the Audit Committee of the
Company were below the threshold limits due to insufficient number of Independent Directors on
Board.

5. Regulation 19(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations for the period 24-07-2021 to 31-03-2022 since the
number of Independent Directors in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company were below the threshold limits due to insufficient number of Independent Director on
Board.

The Company being a Government Company, the Composition of the Board of Directors is dependent
on the direction of the Administrative Ministry and thus, the non- compliance was beyond the control of

the Company.

This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of
enabling it to comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations issued by the SEBI as well as
the Guidelines issued by the DPE with reference to compliance with the relevant regulations/guidelines
on Corporate Governance and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or
to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after

the date of this report.

FOR J.B.S. & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Archhanaa Gupta, FCA
Partner
Membership No: 064645
UDIN- 22064645A0AFYP3615
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29t July, 2022
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COMMLNTS OF THE COMPTROTLER AND ALDITOR GENERAL
OF INDA UNDER SECTTON 143(6) (k) O0F THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 ()N THE FINANCLAL STATEMEXNTS OF BALMER LAWRIE
INVESTMENTS LIMITED FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

‘The prepacation of financial staterients of Balmer Laweis Investmernms Limited for the
weur ended 37 March 2022 i accordunce wilh the Tmancisl repaming frmework proseribed
undsr the Companies Act, 201304¢r) 15 the respensibility ol the management of the company,
The statatory avditors uppeinted by the Cempreollz and Advdiver Genezal of Todia wider
secliom 139 (3] of he Aet me eespensihle Gim exoressing opinjon on the fimascial safkment-
nnder weetion 143 el the At bazed on independent audit in accordanee wilh the standards on
auditing preccribed under ssction 143104 of the Act. This is staled o have been done by
thern wide their Andit Report dated 30 May 2022

L on behall ol The Comnpvollzr and Aaditer Genesal ol India, buve comluctea] 3
snpplernentany audit of the finaneial statements of Balmer 1awre Jovestments Limited tor the
wear onded 31 Mageh 2022 under sceton LA3A)AY of the Act This supplermeniery awdil has
been coricd mat independemly withoul access to the watking papers of the statnlory audivors
angd i3 limited primanly b moguirizs of the stanitery audites acd commpany personmel aird 2

seleclive cxam=nzetion of some ol the accounsing reantds.

Om rhe: asis of Juy supplernenlery aodit norhing sigaificant has come W omy kwled e
which wouid give rise b0 any comment ppel or cupplement b starlory suditnrs? TemEnt nnder

gection 143 (6] {oh of the AL

Farand on ILmlfaflhs
Comptecller & ,-huﬁm.-. Gieneral ol I__-_LL!.;L

Place: Kaolksra |
Dhale: u/
. { =i gar ch)

S Koellulw
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AYD ALIDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTHIN La3{6} (I READ WITH SKECTHMY 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2IM3 (0% THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL: S TATEMENTS OF BALKER
LAWRIE INVESTMENTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2022,
The preparation aof consofidatzd inacial stalernents of Balmer Lawriz Investisms
Fimitsd tor the year vowded 30 March 2022 in accordance with he Ninancial neperling
lrurnzwork proseribed poder the Companies Ao, 2013 (Aer) i3 the respansibilite of die
mialdgelnent vl lhe compemy. The staturaey auditer sppointed by the Cempienller and Aodicor

Cieneral of India under section 139 (51 read with sectan 29 (1) ot the At is responsible for

afuEssinp panm o rhe tinancial statenments umler section 143 read with seerion 179 (4) of

thi Aer Bastd on independenl aodil in aceordance with the standards on anditing preseribued
under section 4301400 af tha Act. This i slalsd Lo havs been done by them vids their Audin
Eoport dated 30 My 2023,

[, on hchalt of the Comptnsller amd Anditer {rzocel of lndia, have conducied a
aupplementary uudit o the consalidated financial staements of Balmer Lawriz Inysstmeirs
Limited for the vear ended 31 Murch 24022 undar scetion 143060 (23 read wilh section 125 ()
af the Acl. We conducled » snpplamenraey audil ol the Dosncial slaemenes of Balmer LawTie
vestmznts Limiled and s sulwidiavics Balmer Lawrie & Cumpany Limiled  snd
Visulchapaleum Pam Logiztics Tatk Linikad bul did noe condecer sopplomenmacy andic of e
financial statziments of the subsidiarizs, associare companies and juinlly comtclled cnimios s
detailed in Arncxur: tae the vear endsd on dhar duti. Furiber, section 139 (5) and 143 (6)

() of the Act are not applicable 1o the entities as detailed in Annexure being privaie

cotities’ entitles incorporated in Forelgn countries under the respeciive laws, for

conduct of supplementary  aodit,

Aceordinghy, Comptroller and Awuditor (reperal of Indin hax ncither appointed the

appointment ol their Stptutory  Aosditor and  for

Statutory Auditors nor conducted the supplementary awdit of these companies. This

supplamentary audil has been carried cut independestly witlel access w lhe working papsts
of the stalutory eudibors and s Jimitsd primarily woinguides of the statntary audiless ad
cornany nersannel and & selective examimation of camz of de aeccunling records.

Bazed on my sopplementasy aedit, Twald like t highlipht the follewioe sianifcant
rriatlers undher sotion T43END) read with sootian 12904) of the At which have come ¢y
amention il which in my vicw are necessary fur enabling s beter undetstanding of the

tinancial staterenls and the related aodic copor:
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1. Balance Sheet:

MNon-curreol Lizililics:

Pruwisions; T GRR 0 lukh

The above doss ol include labilily wowenrds the Balmee Tawrie Sl Provident Tund o2
cespecl el doub il wvestmends al < 1683 croee in M5 THIFT, s TEFS and ®rs Reliance
Capital wlowsr wilh interests oF T D28 crore, 1L wis seon Lhial i conneclion with all (hose
entirics, the Mational Campany Law Tribunal ardeed Corpormts Insalvensy Rasohmion
Prucess. Axa rosull nMwhich chanse pfrecoverny of principal as well g4 wlerest amount (e
thazs ontitics gooms o b remote, Thus, the Company 85 mandated by the provisions of law
haes e mnake goosd soch lovses of the concernad Mrovidort, Fand Drust e fan, an amount of
T 1.0 crors has wlready besn paid by Lhe Company oseands this end. Therefore. the Tolence
arniounl ol T 1202 crore ® 1165 crme — L2208 crore T 191 croure] should Teoee besn
provided for by the Company in is books of accounes during the fwancial wear 2021-225,
Mam-provisioning nl the same b resolled i omderstatemend e Brovisions oncse Non-currsnl
Liatailities b ¥ 12,02 crure with the semmesponding overslatsmenl el proedil fur e vewre by an

aqual actleut.

2. Bualanec Shect:

{ither € orrent [iahilities: (32324 laki.
AT amannt of § 115 erare waz roocived fram M50 ORGED Limited for a contract which was
ultinedely eaecued by Transale Services Licted (TSR a jeinl venlues composy Teesed op o
bemorandum of Lndemtanding (Mol onmered  inta betwesn OG0 Limndted and  the
Company. A per e provigiore el soch Mol the Cumpeny would receive U payomeod Eroro
CMNL Limited and w turn, franpster such paviment to TS after dedocring v commissicn and
othaer adjustmnenls, I was, hirgever, seen thac the Company afler dedaeiing i comimiszion af
F 001 crere had wed reosleered Lhe balunce amueont of T 301 coere o TR T s warlhediile
oo mektion that, in i meantime, 150 had bezn rctoned ™ >ational Company Law | rikanal
(M CLT) whersin Corporale Insohvaney Besolution Process was orderod. Bob the elames of the
Comparty on TSL wos nol vorsidered by WNCLT. A o resull, the Company adjusied § 501
crtre dpainst the mmstanding duss of TS0 and had written off the balanes: of amonnt, ducs
R i baoks o this negaed, Insolveney Beaclotion Professional of T8 mionoed the
Coompany chat any amouart ceceived Hom OGO Landted had to be paid back to TSL withour
wdjustiage the same apaimsl the cocstarding duss nf LS1L in che hooks of the Company.
Uheretors, By adivsting the said amount eceived Joeay OWOC Lioated apainst the dues oo
T5L, thers wes nob anly shurl provisicnimg o Liskilice kot also underslaiemenl ul Dol Gebls

written ot in respoct of TSL,
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Thuz, nen-priretsionmgs of fiahiling of 35410 crore owards 1751 osnltod inounderscatemnent

P Current Liabilities as well s understutemenl of Bad [ dehe weriites ol by 3.0 covre euch

with & coreespondiog of restabemend o Poolil Tor the vewr by © 602 crore,

. Dauluance <hect:
My omcuend Liahilities:

Prowisinn: T 0uy2 (i Iakh
Curvent Liahilities:
Prosision: T 195201 lukh

The ubvae hewls of scemnts do nar inctude 313,29 crore {8 9243 crore upte March 2020 and

charges pavablz e Slvama Prasad Mockegee Port, Tolkuw {Costwhile Kilkuta Puort Trusl ur
Kol 1) rewards expited leasshold land in respect of Lodwstrial Mackaging Unieat Kolkara, e
above woil was clused by the Company o Aweust Z0M). The hundinge ovee of the lewseluld
lamcd is wet tn b completed Chasg 20223, As a eesub, Shyvama Prasad boakerjzs Pout, Kalkata
kept oo ralsinge compensalion charres fr such onswhorised accupaney ul o hgher rale of
thrag Times than the novmal leage rea@l as par e Tarill Auhority o Fajor Pocs® appraised
Lurul Policy Cinidshuss, The Company, however, did not account for such enhanced Hahiling
al & 1329 cyore for the swid wnaoCusrised ave opancy.

Thus, non-previsioning of the zams has resultad in understatement of Mrovizions undec
el Laighibilice by T 1.0 crone a5 well a3 andorsratemene of Provisions wnder »on-carment

Laabililics by < 110906 crore with somesponding averamatzment of Profic for the veac 1320

Croge,
Tioor and um the hehall ol the
Carnplroller & Auflitor Grenerul of [ndia
I|
|

¥
Place: [Kalkata. FSupa eh
Coare - | Mresc b Coeneral af Aadin (Mies)

Focalbosts
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AMBREKLLRE

At of SubsTdiarics, Asseciawes end Joint Venture Curnpinie: wloss supplams roane audit of the

Nugnwlal stalsments was e condoetad by the Cerepreedler & Aodite General of India [or the
wouer cnded 3103 2022,
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1 Mukhsirdia oAl Wl

I. Chatterjee & Associates

JTT-E.
1 Dielhvi DiNica

¥ PGy ki

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2022)
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members
Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited, CIN:
L65999WB2001GO0I1093759 (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents (including RTA), electronic records available in the official portal of the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, portal of the Stock Exchanges, representation made by the Management and considering
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India
on account of ongoing global pandemic Novel Coronavirus (COVID 19), we hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering Financial Year ended on 315t March
2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed with the stock exchange,

in the official portal of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), etc. and other records maintained by

the Company for the Financial Year ended on 315t March 2022, according to the applicable provisions

of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;
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Vi)
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. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2018; (not applicable to the Company during audit period)

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008 (upto 15" August, 2021) (not applicable to the company during review
period);

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 (upto 15" August, 2021) (not applicable
to the company during review period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 (with effect from 16™ August, 2021)- (not applicable to the company during
review period);

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Acts, 2013 and dealing with client;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat

Equity) Regulation, 2021. (not applicable to the company during audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(not applicable to the Company during audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations 2018; (not
applicable to the Company during audit period)

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018.

The Management of the Company represented that fiscal, labour and environmental laws and
other Statutes which are applicable to such type of companies, are generally complied with which
inter-alia includes the following which is specifically applicable to the Company:

a. Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the

Department of Public Enterprise vide their OM No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14" May 2010.

We have also examined compliance of the applicable clauses of the following:

a.

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to
Board Meetings (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).

. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges read with the
provisions of the Listing Regulations.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc. mentioned above, subject to the
following observations:

1. Regulation 17(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations during the period 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022 due to

absence of adequate number of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company.
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2. Para 3.1.4 of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010
and Second proviso to Section 149 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 for the period 24-07-2021 to
01-01-2022 due to absence of adequate number of Independent Directors on the Board of the
Company.

3. Regulation 17(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations for the period 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022 due to
absence of adequate number of Directors on the Board of the Company.

4. Regulation 18(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, Section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Para 4.1.1 of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010
for the period 24-07-2021 to 31-03-2022 since the number of Independent Directors in the Audit
Committee of the Company were below the threshold limits due to insufficient number of
Independent Directors on Board.

5. Regulation 19(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations and Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the period 24-07-2021 to 31-03-2022 since the number of Independent Directors in the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Company were below the threshold limits due to insufficient
number of Independent Directors on Board.

We report that:

a. The Board of Directors of the Company was not duly constituted with proper balance of
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except for Meetings where urgent
matters were discussed and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

c. Majority decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out while the
dissenting member’s views were captured and recorded as a part of the Minutes.

We report that during the period under review, the Board meetings were conducted where option was
given to the Board Members to participate either physically or through video conferencing and
adequate facilities are used to facilitate the Directors at other locations to participate in the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, no events occurred which had major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standard,
etc. referred above.

Place: Kolkata For T. Chatterjee & Associates
Date:12t" July 2022 Practicing Company Secretaries
FRN No. - P2007WB067100

Binita Pandey — Partner
ACS : 41594, CP : 19730
UDIN:A041594D000606576

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report
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To,

CIN: L65999WB2001G0I1093759
‘Annexure A’

The Members of
Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the Guidance Notes on ICSI Auditing Standard, audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata For T. Chatterjee & Associates
Date: 12t July 2022 Practicing Company Secretaries

FRN No. - P2007WB067100
Binita Pandey — Partner

ACS : 41594, CP : 19730
UDIN:A041594D000606576
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J. B.S. & Company Phonc : 22 82 6809
CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS
S, BENTINOK STREET, 4TH FLOOR
AKOLEKAIA TOH Y

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF
BALMER LAWRIE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of BALMER LAWRIE
INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2022, the Profit and total
comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no Key
Audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Emphasis of Matter

i. We draw your attention to Note No 37 to the standalone financial statements which explain

the uncertainties and the management’s assessment of the financial impact due to the lock-
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down and other restrictions and conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for
which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is highly dependent
upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our report is not modified in respect of these matters.
Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Return but does not include the
Financial Statements and our Auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of the Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance and cash flow of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statement, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

o Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board of
Directors in terms of the requirements specified under Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Standalone Financial Results of the
Company to express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Results.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Results that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Standalone Financial Results may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Results.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors ‘report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report ) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government Of India in terms of sub-section(11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order , to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Standalone cash flow statement and the statement of changes in
equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

e) The provision of Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Government
Companies in terms of notification No GSR 463(E) dated 5™ June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigation which does have any impact on its
financial position in its financial statements;

i. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;
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iii. During the year, the company has transferred amount of Rs. 33.49 lakhs to Investor Education
and Protection Fund pertaining to unpaid dividend.

h) As required Under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 we furnish in “Annexure C”
compliance to the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
Partner
Membership No.:- 306354
Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 22306354AJWROR5385
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date to the Standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, we report that:

()  The Company does not hold any Property, Plant & Equipment during the financial year ended
318t March, 2022. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(i)(a) to (d) are not applicable to the
company.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation received from the company,
no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any Inventory during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.
Hence, reporting of other information under clause 3 (ii) (a) of the said Order is not
applicable.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hence, sub-clause (b) of Paragraph
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(i)  During the year, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured/unsecured, to
companies/firms/Limited Liability Partnerships/other parties. Hence, Paragraph 3(iii) of the order
is not applicable to the company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not
made any loan, investment, and guarantees to any person specified under section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is an Investment company. Hence, Section 186 of The
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of Paragraph
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable to the
Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed for the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for any services rendered by the company. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3(vi) is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (@) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and
Services Tax and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the company
examined, there were no dues in respect of Income taxes, Goods and Service Tax and other
material statutory dues which have not been deposited as on 31.03.2022 with the
appropriate authorities on account of a dispute.
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no such transaction
recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence, Clause
3(viii) is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not taken any loans or other borrowings and has not
defaulted in the payment of interest to any lender. Hence, Paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer including debt instruments during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under sub clause (a)
to Paragraph 3(x) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly or optionally
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the reporting under sub
clause (b) Paragraph 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has neither committed any fraud nor has any fraud on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no report under
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) There has been no instance of whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year under audit.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required
by the applicable Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion, the company has an Internal Audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit report for the year under audit, issued to the company
till date. In determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 as the Reserve Bank of India has exempted the company to comply with the
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formalities of the registration and minimum net owned funds, under Notification No. DNBS.
153/CGM(LMF)-2001 dated December 10, 2001.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

During the year, there has not been any resignation by the statutory auditor of the company.
Hence, Clause 3(xviii) of The Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

Based upon the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion
that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

The company does not has any unspent amount to be transferred to a Fund specified in
Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial
year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
Partner
Membership No.:- 306354

Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 22306354AJWROR5385
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Annexure B to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BALMER LAWRIE
INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
Partner
Membership No.:- 306354
Date: 30.05.2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 22306354AJWROR5385
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless

stated otherwise)

. As at As at
Particulars Notes
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 51.62 37.57
Bank balances other than above 6 12,382.48 14,210.91
Investments 7 3,267.77 3,267.77
Other financial assets 8 - 5.35
15,701.87 17,521.60
Non Financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 10 549.71 538.22
549.71 538.22
TOTAL ASSETS 16,251.58 18,059.82
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 9 254.73 290.05
254.73 290.05
Non Financial Liabilities
Other non financial liabilities 11 1.34 1.00
1.34 1.00
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 2,219.73 2,219.73
Other equity 13 13,775.78 15,549.04
15,995.51 17,768.77
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,251.58 18,059.82
Summary of significant accounting policies and 1-4
The accompanying notes are integral part of the
financial statements. 1-40
As per our report of even date.
For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
FRN: 323734E
Sandip Das Shilpa Shashikant Abhishek Lahoti
Sudhanshu Sen, FCA Patwardhan
Director Director Company Secretary

(Partner)
Membership No: 306354

Place : Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2022

( DIN:08217697)

( DIN:07008287)
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Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Revenue from Operations

Interest income 14 589.23 764.09

Dividend income 15 6,340.76 7,925.95
Total Revenue from Operations 6,929.99 8,690.04

Other income 16 11.84 18.21
Total Income (I) 6,941.83 8,708.25
Expenses:

Employee benefits expenses 17 18.87 17.54

Other expenses 18 142.65 78.08
Total expenses (ll) 161.52 95.62
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax for the period (llI=I-l) 6,780.31 8,612.63
Exceptional Items (V) o -
Profit before Tax (V= 1I-1V) 6,780.31 8,612.63
Tax expense 19

Current tax 118.61 150.47

Deferred tax - -
Total tax expense (VI) 118.61 150.47
Profit for the period from Continuing Operations (VII= V-VI) 6,661.70 8,462.16
Profit from Discontinued Operations (VIII) - -
Tax expense of Discontinued Operations (IX) - -
Profit from Discontinued Operations (after tax) (X= VIII-IX) - -
Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss o -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss o -
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss o -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period (XI) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XII=X+XI) 6,661.70 8,462.16
Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) (for Continuing Operations) 20

Basic (Rs per share) 30.01 38.12

Diluted (Rs per share) 30.01 38.12
Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) (for Discontinued Operations) 20

Basic (Rs per share) - -

Diluted (Rs per share) - -
Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) (for Continuing and Discontinued 20
Operations)

Basic (Rs per share) 30.01 38.12

Diluted (Rs per share) 30.01 38.12
Summary of significant accounting policies and 1-4
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 1-40

As per our report of even date.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
(Partner)
Membership No: 306354

Place : Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited

Sandip Das Shilpa Shashikant Abhishek Lahoti
Patwardhan
Director Director Company Secretary

( DIN:08217697) ( DIN:07008287)
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
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(Al amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Cash flow from Operating Activities

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 6,780.31 8,612.63
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating assets:
Other financial assets 5.35 4.10
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Other financial liabilities (35.32) 25.86
Other non financial liabilities 0.34 (0.31)
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,828.43 311.45
Cash generated from operations 8,579.11 8,953.74
Net income tax (paid) / refunds (130.10) (672.82)
Net cash flow from / (used in) Operating Activities (A) 8,449.01 8,280.92
Cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) - -
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid (8,434.96) (8,323.98)
Net cash flow from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) (8,434.96) (8,323.98)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 14.05 (43.06)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 37.57 80.63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 51.62 37.57

Summary of significant accounting policies and

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
(Partner)
Membership No: 306354

Place : Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2022

( DIN:08217697)

1-40

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shilpa Shashikant
Patwardhan
Director

( DIN:07008287)

Abhishek Lahoti

Company Secretary
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A Equity share capital

(1) Current reporting period

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
CIN: L65999WB2001G0I093759

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of the
current
reporting period

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
current
reporting period

Changes in Equity

Share Capital during the

current year

Balance at the end
of the current
reporting period

Number of Equity Shares (Face Value % 10)
Equity Share Capital

22,197,269.00
2,219.73

22,197,269.00
2,219.73

22,197,269.00
2,219.73

(2) Previous reporting period

Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of the

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to

Restated balance at
the beginning of the

Changes in Equity

Share Capital during the

Balance at the end
of the previous

Membership No: 306354

Place : Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2022

( DIN:08217697)

( DIN:07008287)

previous prior period errors previous previous year reporting period
reporting period reporting period
Number of Equity Shares (Face Value ¥ 10) 22,197,269 - 22,197,269 - 22,197,269
Equity Share Capital 2,219.73 - 2,219.73 - 2,219.73
B Other equity
(1) Current reporting period
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Capital Reserve General Reserve Retained earnings Total
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 1,053.04 5,316.03 9,179.97 15,549.04
Changes in Accounting policy or prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 1,053.04 5,316.03 9,179.97 15,549.04
Profit/(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2022 6,661.70 6,661.70
Dividends ( including Dividend Distribution Tax , if any (8,434.96) (8,434.96)
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 1,053.04 5,316.03 7,406.71 13,775.78
(2) Previous reporting period
Reserves and surplus
Particulars
fed Capital Reserve General Reserve Retained earnings Total
Balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period 1,053.04 5,316.03 9,041.79 15,410.86
Changes in Accounting policy or prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 1,053.04 5,316.03 9,041.79 15,410.86
Profit/(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2021 8,462.16 8,462.16
Dividends ( including Dividend Distribution Tax , if any (8,323.98) (8,323.98)
Balance at the end of the previous reporting period 1,053.04 5,316.03 9,179.97 15,549.04
As per our report of even date.
For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E
Sandip Das Shilpa Shashikant Abhishek Lahoti
Sudhanshu Sen, FCA Patwardhan
(Partner) Director Director Company Secretary

68




Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
CIN: L65999WB2001G0I093759

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2022

Company Overview

Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited (“the Company”) is a Government Company domiciled in India and
registered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Its Shares are listed on two recognized
stock exchanges in India i.e. Bombay Stock Exchange and Calcutta Stock Exchange. The Company is
not engaged in any other business activity, except to hold the equity shares of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

The Company is the holding company of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Limited (BL) by virtue of its acquiring
61.80% shareholding of the BL through a Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction between IBP Co.
Ltd., Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act. The Scheme became effective on 5 February, 2002 with an
appointed date of 15th October, 2001. President of India holds 59.67% in the Company. The company
has its registered office situated at 21, Netaji Subash Road, Kolkata -700001.

Basis of Preparation

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and are in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable regulatory norms/ guidelines.

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the standalone financial statements are as
given below:

3.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant
accounting policies. These policies have been applied consistently for all the periods presented in the
standalone financial statements.

3.2 Revenue Recognition

The Company is not engaged in any other business activity, except to hold the equity shares of Balmer
Lawrie & Co. Ltd. Revenue arises mainly from the interest income and dividend income which are
recognized in compliance with the applicable Ind AS.

Interest Income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
rate applicable.

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate, i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Dividend Income

Income from dividend on investment in subsidiaries is taken into account on accrual basis when
company’s right to receive payment is established.

Other Income

Other income, if any, is recognized in accordance with the relevant Ind AS.
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3.3 Financial Instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) which are
measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are
described below.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial
liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories
upon initial recognition:

Amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), if required

Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries (carried at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 read with Ind
AS 101)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment.
Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the following
conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized on financial assets carried at amortized cost.

Since, the company is not allowed to carry on any business activity, except to hold equity shares of M/s
Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd., there is no financial asset classified under FVTPL & FVOCI.

3.4 Impairment of financial assets

In respect of impairment of its financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial
assets has increased significantly since initial recognition.

To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset
as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of
initial recognition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the
balance sheet date.

Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped
pursuing the recovery.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balance lying with the banks under current account
and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less
than three months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash flow statement is reported using indirect method as per Ind
AS 7.

3.6 Employee Benefits Expenses

Employee benefits comprise of salaries and wages of staff deployed by service provider and it includes
contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund which was reimbursed to the service provider,
who maintains and makes provisions for the aforesaid amounts.

3.7 Segment Reporting

The Company's only business is investment in its subsidiary M/s Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd., and hence
segment reporting as envisaged by Ind AS 108 notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is not
applicable to the Company for Standalone Financial Statements.

3.8 Material Prior Period Errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the
prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are
restated.

Prior period errors are corrected by retrospective restatement except to the extent that it is impracticable
to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.

3.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company
and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based
on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties
associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time
value of money is material.

A contingent liability is disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning
the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not
exceed the amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the
related asset is disclosed.

3.10 Taxes on Income
Current tax is the amount of tax payable as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income

Tax Act, 1961 on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years.
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Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
income. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized. Under the current scenario, the company does not have any
deferred tax asset or liability.

3.11 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost associated)
for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares, except in case where results are anti-dilutive.

Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty
The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judgments

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the applicability of indicators
of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result
in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Significant estimates

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of
expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset.

Recoverability of receivables and investments

At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the

management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and investments.

For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA Sandip Das Shilpa Shashikant Abhishek Lahoti
Patwardhan
(Partner) Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 306354 (DIN:08217697) (DIN:07008287)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30t May, 2022
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(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
in current account

in Term deposits for original maturity of 3 months or less with
scheduled banks

Bank balances other than above

Earmarked Balances with Banks in separate accounts
For Unclaimed dividends

Deposits with maturity for more than three months but up to
12 months

(Including accrued interest of Rs. 231.78 Lakh as on March
31,2022; Rs. 275.05 as on March 31, 2021)

Investments

Quoted Investment:

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary Co., Balmer Lawrie
& Co. Ltd. (at Cost) (No of shares :10,56,79,350: March 31, 2022;
10,56,79,350: March 31, 2021) (equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
(Market Value: Rs.1,19,153.47 Lakh : March 31, 2022;
Rs.1,36,273.52 Lakh : March 31, 2021)

Note: Refer Note No. 25 for details on investment.

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

51.62 37.57
51.62 37.57
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

234.93 243.88
12,147.55 13,967.03
12,382.48 14,210.91

As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

3,267.77

3,267.77

3,267.77

3,267.77
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended

31st March, 2022
8  Other financial assets
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Other receivable - 5.35
- 5.35
9  Other financial liabilities
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unclaimed Dividends 234.93 243.88
Others:
Expenses Payable 19.80 46.17
254.73 290.05
10 Current tax assets/ (liabilities) (net)
As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Advance Income Tax and TDS 1,288.93 1,190.97
Less: Provision for income tax (739.22) (652.75)
Current tax assets/ (liabilities) (net) 549.71 538.22

11 Other non financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Statutory Remittances- TDS Payable 1.34 1.00

1.34 1.00
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Eauitv share capital
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of Shares in lakhs No. of Shares in lakhs
a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of 10/- each with voting rights 100,000,000 10,000 2,50,00,000 2,500
b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of 10/- each with voting rights 22,197,269 2,219.73 22,197,269 2,219.73
22,197,269 2,219.73 22,197,269 2,219.73
¢) Reconciliation of share capital For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of Shares in lakhs No. of Shares in lakhs
As at the beginning of the year 22,197,269 2,219.73 22,197,269 2,219.73
Shares issued during the year - - - -
As at the closing of the year 22,197,269 2,219.73 22,197,269 2,219.73

Terms and rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share with a right to receive per share dividend declared by the Company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after payment of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d) Shareholders holdina more than 5% of the eauitv share cabital of the companv:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares Percentage No. of Shares Percentage
President of India 13,246,098 59.67% 13,246,098 59.67%
CD Eaqufinance Pvt. Ltd. 1,421,022 6.40% 1,545,246 6.96%
e) Details of Shareholding of Promoters is as under:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2022 As at_March 31, 2021 % Change

Promoters Name No of Shares | Percentage No of Shares Percentage | during the year

President of India 13,246,098 59.67% 3,246,098 59.67% -
Total 13,246,098 59.67% 13,246,098 59.67% -

The Company has not issued equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, any bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

13 Other Equity
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
i) Other Reserve
a) Capital Reserve 1053.04 1,053.04
b) General Reserve 5316.03 5,316.03
ii) Retained Earnings 7406.71 9,179.97
13775.78 15,549.04
Dividends
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
(i) Equitv shares
Final dividend paid durina vear ended 31 March 2022 of ¥ 38.00
(31 March 2021 - % 37.5) per fullv paid share 8,434.96 8,323.98

(i) Dividends not recoanised at the end of the reportina period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the payment of a final 6,659.19 8,434.96
dividend of ¥ 30.00 ( 31 March 2021 ¥ 38.00) per fully paid equity share. This proposed dividend is subject

to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

14

15

16

17

18

(Al amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Interest income

Interest Income on deposits from banks

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments

Other Income

Others:
Miscellaneous Income

Employee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages
Contributions to Provident & Other Funds

Other expenses

Printing and Stationery
Telephone, Telex, Postage, Cables and Telegrams
Service Charges
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note below)
Travelling and Conveyance
Auditor's Fees and Expenses:

As Auditor - Statutory Audit

For Taxation

For Other Services
Bank Charges
Listing fees and Other fees(Refer Note below)
Miscellaneous Expenses (Refer Note No. 29)

Disclosure in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility expenses :

1 Gross amount required to be spent
2 Amount spent during the year
Prime Minister's CARE Fund(2021-22)
Prime Minister's National Relief Fund(2020-21)

Details of payments of Listing Fees & Other Fees:

Trade Subscription
Other Fees & Charges

Payment to MCA towards increase in Authorised Share Capital from 25

cr. To 100 cr.

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

589.23

764.09

589.23

764.09

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

6,340.76

7,925.95

6,340.76

7,925.95

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

11.84

18.21

11.84

18.21

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

16.79 15.63
2.08 1.91
18.87 17.54

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

0.39 0.08
1.37 0.02
56.05 49.56
15.27 14.79
0.35 0.80
1.24 1.24
0.12 0.12
0.12 0.12
0.01 0.01
65.85 9.32
1.88 2.02
142.65 78.08
15.27 14.79
15.27 10.00
- 4.79
6.28 5.69
3.18 3.63
56.39 -
65.85 9.32
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended

31st March, 2022

(Al amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Tax expense
Current tax
Taxes for earlier years

114.50 176.60
4.11 (26.13)
118.61 150.47

In pursuance to Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended, the company has the option of shifting to a reduced

tax rate effective April 1, 2020 along with a consequent reduction in certain tax incentives and subject to certain conditions. The

Company evaluated these provisions and have already exercised this option during the previous financial year.

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of at
25.168% (Previous year: 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit(loss) before income tax
Applicable rate of tax

Tax effect of:

Deduction U/S 80M

Corporate social responsibility

Expenditure incurred to earn dividend income u/s 14A
Others(earlier years)

Others(rounded off)

Earnings/(Loss) per equity share (EPS)

Net profit/(Loss) for the year

Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS
Par value per share (in Rs.)

Earnings per share - Basic

Earnings per share - Diluted

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

6,780.31 8,612.63
25.168% 25.168%
1,706.47 2,167.63
(1,595.84) (1,994.80)
3.84 3.72
4.11 (26.13)
0.03 0.05
118.61 150.47
6661.70 8462.16
22197269 22197269
10 10
30.01 38.12
30.01 38.12
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Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

i o As at As at
Contingent liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
BSE has been imposing fines on the Company on quarterly basis - for non-compliance of provisions of SEBI LODR 79.56 53.78

Regulations 2015 pertaining to composition of Board of Directors and the composition of some Board level
Committees. Suitable reply has been given by the Company to BSE for waiver of these fines as the same were due to

factors beyond control of the Company.
Out of Rs. 79.56 lakhs,Rs. 25.78 lakhs pertains to F.Y. 2021-22, Rs. 10.68 lakhs pertains to F.Y. 2020-21, Rs. 27.90 lakhs pertains to F.Y. 2019-20 and Rs. 15.20 lakh

pertains to F.Y. 2018-19.

The figures of fine as reflected as on 31st March, 2022 has been calculated based on notices received from BSE Ltd. for the period ended 31.03.2022 and waiver
thereof.
The Company being a Governement Company, the compliance regarding composition of directors is not within the control of the Company but as per directions of the

administrative ministry.

Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction

(a) A Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction (‘the Scheme'),made under sections 391 to 394 of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act'), was executed by and
between IBP Co. Ltd. ('IBP') and Balmer Lawrie Investments Ltd. (‘the Company') and their respective creditors and shareholders. The Scheme under notification no.
GSR/238 dated 2nd February 1978, was approved by the erstwhile Department of Company Affairs, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company Affairs, Govt. of India, was
approved on 8th January 2002, with the appointed date of 15th October 2001.Under the Scheme 1,00,64,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up, of Balmer
Lawrie & Co. Ltd. ('BL'), held by IBP, was transferred to the Company, whereby the Company became holder of 61.8% Equity Shares of BL, with effect from the aforesaid
appointed date of the Scheme, i.e., 15th October 2001.

(b) In consideration of transfer of the aforesaid shares of BL by IBP, the Company had allotted 2,21,47,269 equity shares of % 10/- each, fully paid-up to the shareholders
of IBP (consideration other than cash), in the ratio of 1:1.

Public Deposit :
The Company has not accepted any Public deposit within the meaning of Section 45I(bb) of RBI Act 1934 during the year in question & the company has also

passed resolution for non-acceptance of any Public Deposit.

Non Banking Financial Company ('NBFC')

Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited is a non-banking financial Company as defined under section 45-I(f) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. On the basis of
application given by the Company the RBI in exercise of their power conferred under section 45-NC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, has exempted the Company
to comply with the formalities of registration and minimum net owned funds, under the Notification No. DNBS.153/CGM(LMF)-2001 dated December 10, 2001.

The Financial Statements have been prepared as per the requirements of Division Ill to the Revised Schedule Ill of the Companies Act,2013

Investment Details

The Company holds 61.8 % equity shares of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.(BL). The Company holds 10,56,79,350 equity shares of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. carrying at cost.
Hence, disclosure requirement regarding fair value is not required.

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises are given below:

The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 2021-22 is NIL .(Previous Year:NIL)

Unclaimed Dividend Accounts

The Company has to maintain a dividend account from where the dividends are issued to the shareholders, the amount of unclaimed dividend which remains there for
more than seven years is then transferred to the Investor Education & Protection Fund Account.

The Unclaimed Final dividend outstanding in the accounts for the financial year 2013-14 was % 33.49 lakhs which has been transferred to the Investors' Education &
protection Fund Account during the year.

Service Agreement with Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd (BL)

The company has entered into Service Agreement with Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd (BL) whereby BL shall act as a Service Provider to maintain Books of Accounts,
Statutory Registers , provide services, in nature of administration , finance, taxation , secretarial and other allied functions., provide office space and other requisite
infrastructure.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended
31st March, 2022

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
Details of Miscellaneous Expenses March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Statutory Publication 1.69 2.00
Other Misc. Expenses 0.19 0.02
1.88 2.02
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 (Rs.in March 31, 2021 (Rs.in
Remuneration of Independent Directors and Company Secretary: Lakhs) Lakhs)
Salaries 16.79 15.63
Contribution to Provident and Gratuity Fund 2.08 1.91
Perquisites 0.00 0.00
Sitting fees 0.35 1.4
19.22 18.94
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CIN: L65999WB2001G0I093759

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Al amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard — 24 the names of the related parties where control/ability to exercise significant influence exists, along with the
aggregate amount of transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

a. Details of related parties:

Names of related parties Description of relationship

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd (BL) Subsidiary Company

Balmer Lawrie (U.K.) Ltd. (BLUK) Wholly Owned Subsidiary of BL. (Dissolved on 28.09.2021)

Visakhapatnam Port Logistics Park Limited (VPLPL) Subsidiary of BL.

PT. Balmer Lawrie- Indonesia An Associate in which BL is having significant influence. Joint Venture of BL.
Balmer Lawrie-Van Leer Ltd. An Associate in which BL is having significant influence. Joint Venture of BL.
Balmer Lawrie (UAE) LLC. An Associate in which BL is having significant influence. Joint Venture of BL.
* Transafe Services Ltd. An Associate in which BL is having significant influence. Joint Venture of BL.
Avi - Oil India (P) Ltd. An Associate in which BL is having significant influence. Associate of BL.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Shri Shyam Sundar Khuntia Director — Non Executive (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 01.05.2020)

Shri Shyam Singh Mahar Government Nominee Director — Non Executive (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 14.01.2021)
Shri Sandip Das Director — Non Executive

Smt. Perin Devi Rao Government Nominee Director — Non Executive (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 02.01.2022)
Shri Mrityunjay Jha Government Nominee Director — Non Executive (w.e.f. 14.01.2021)

Shri Ajay Singhal Independent Director (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 24.07.2021)

Smt Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan Independent Director

Shri Abhishek Lahoti Company Secretary

Note: Related Parties have been identified by the management.

During the financial year 2018-19, the group started the process of closing down/winding up of its wholly owned step down subsidiary, M/s Balmer Lawrie (UK) Limited (BLUK).
This process of winding up has been completed in the current financial year and the company had been struck off by the Registrar of Companies at UK on 21.09.2021 and
finally dissolved on 28.09.2021.

(*)Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (NCLT) vide its order dated April 09, 2021 have approved the Resolution Plan of M/s Om Logistics Limited
((Resolution Applicant in the said matter of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) initiated upon M/s Transafe Services Limited (TSL)), wherein the following had
been approved upon implementation of the Resolution Plan : (a) The entire existing Equity Share Capital of TSL shall stand cancelled, extinguished and anulled & be regarded
as reduction of Share Capital to the extent of 99.99997% and remaining 0.00003% transferred to Resolution Applicant & (b)The entire existing Preference Share Capital of TSL
shall stand cancelled, extinguished and anulled & be regarded as reduction of Capital. Consequent to the same, the Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (BL) ceased to have joint control
or have any significant influence over TSL.and TSL ceased to be a Related Party of Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd (BL) under the extant provisions of Section 2(76) of the
Companies Act, 2013 or under Ind AS-110 or clause 2(1) (zb) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. However, the company has filed
an appeal to Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) against the order of Hon'ble NCLT and the matter is pending for adjudication before Hon'ble
NCLAT.The investments of the company (in both equity and preference shares in the said joint venture), have been unilaterally reduced by way of capital reduction, by the
demat account service provider. The company has been following up with the demat account service provider for re-instatement of the same considering that the matter is sub-

judice (supra).

b. Transactions with Related Parties are as under: (Rs. in lakhs)

Transactions during the year with BL

Outstanding balances during the year

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Receiving of services (including reimbursement of expenses) 47.50 42.03
Dividend Income (6,340.76) (7,925.95)
Amount incurred on a/c of Salaries etc. of employees deputed or otherwise 15.99 14.86

Outstanding Payable (16.14) (39.47)
Salaries and wages (3.18) (8.50)
Service Charges (12.96) (30.97)
Investment in Shares 3,267.77 3,267.77
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel 19.22 18.94
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Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
CIN: L65999WB2001G0I093759

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended
31st March, 2022

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
Financial instruments

Financial instruments by category measured at amortised cost:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 51.62 37.57
Bank balances other than above 12,382.48 14,210.91
Other financial assets = 5.35
Total 12,434.10 14,253.83

Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 254.73 290.05
Total 254.73 290.05

Financial instruments by category measured at cost:

|Investments* 3,267.77 3,267.77

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities are considered a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

*The Company has opted to recognise the investments as per Ind AS 27 at cost.

Fair values hierarchy
The Company does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities carried at fair value.

Financial risk management

Risk Management
The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Company’s financial assets and liabilities by
category are summarised in Note 32(i). The main types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The Company’s risk management is coordinated in close co-operation with the Board of Directors, and focuses on securing the
Company’s short to medium term cash flows. The Company does not engage in trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company’s exposure to credit risk
is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at balance sheet date as summarised in Note 32(i).

The Company has investment in equity instrument of subsidiaries and therefore, credit risk in respect of such financial assets is
considered negligible.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities as and when they are due.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, back-up facilities such as deposits and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than 5 years Total
Other financial liabilities 254.73 = 254.73
Total 254.73 - 254.73
As at 31 March 2021 Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than 5 years Total
Other financial liabilities 290.05 - 290.05
Total 290.05 - 290.05

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. It comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk:
The company does not have any foreign currency transactions, hence, it is not exposed to currency risk.

Interest rate risk:
As the Company does not have any borrowings outstanding, it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Price risk:
The company does not have any financial instrument which exposes it to price risk.

Capital management

The Company’s capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reserves. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. The Company does not have any Non-current borrowings and all its capital needs are met by capital or
shareholders only.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Amounts expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months and beyond for each line item under asset and liabilities

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars

Within 12 months After 12 months Within 12 months After 12 months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 51.62 - 37.57 -
Other bank balances 12,382.48 - 14,210.91 -
Investments - 3,267.77 - 3,267.77
Other financial assets - - 5.35 -
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 549.71 - 538.22 -
Other financial assets - - - -
Total Assets 12,983.81 3,267.77 14,792.05 3,267.77
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 254.73 - 290.05 -
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - - - -
Other non-financial liabilities 1.34 - 1.00 -
Total Liabilities 256.07 - 291.05 -
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

The Key Ratios are as under:

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 % Variance Reason for variance
Capital to Risk-weighted . ] . Risk Weighted
assets ratio (CRAR) Tier | + Tier |l Capital Assets ) )
Tier | CRAR Tier | Capital Risk Weighted - -
Assets
Tier Il CRAR Tier Il Capital Risk Weighted ; ;
Assets

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Stock of High Quality
Liquid Assets

Total Net Cash
Outflows over the
next 30 calendar

days
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
37 Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic

The spread of global health pandamic Covid-19 has severely affected the businesses around the globe. In many countries including India, there had been severe
disruption to regular operations due to lock-down, disruptions in transportations, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency
measures.

The Company has made detailed assessment and has concluded that no material adjustments are required to be made in the financial results due to Covid-19.
However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature, extent and duration. The management shall
continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions on a continuing basis.

38 There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

39 Previous year figures have been regrouped or rearranged or reclassified wherever considered necessary.

40 Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (including comparatives) has been signed by the Board of Directors as on 30 .05. 2022

Summary of significant accounting policies and
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA Sandip Das Shilpa Shashikant Patwardhan Abhishek Lahoti
(Partner) Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 306354 ( DIN:08217697) ( DIN:07008287)

Place : Kolkata
Date: &30th May, 2022
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Form AOC-1

For the Year ended 31.03.2022
Information in respect of Subsidiaries , Associates & Joint Ventures

(Pursuant to Section 129(3) of Companies Act 2013 read with Rule5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Part - A - Subsidiaries

(All amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Sl. No. Particulars 1 2 3
1 Name of the subsidiary Balmer Lawrie & Co Ltd. | Balmer Lawrie UK Ltd. Visakhapatanam Port
Logistics Park Ltd.
2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 15-10-2001 16-11-1992 24-07-2014
3 Repgrtlng period for the s‘ubS|d|e?ry concerned,if different from the NA| 01-04-2021 to 28-09-2021 NA
holding company's reporting period.
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the NA usD NA
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. @ % 74.22/USD
5 Share capital 17,100.38 - 13506.50
6 Reserves & surplus 114,885.52 - (4544.48)
7 Total t: 194,503.47 - 19765.15
8 Total Liabilities 62,517.57 - 10803.14
9 Investments 12,989.37 - -
10 Turnover 210,484.97 0.04 1405.37
11 Profit /(Loss) before taxation 17,014.45 (0.09) (820.91)
12 Provision for taxation 4,733.80 - -
13 Profit /(Loss) after taxation 12,280.65 (0.09) (820.91)
14 Proposed Dividend 11,115.25 - -
15 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 61.80% 100% 60%
Note

During the financial year 2018-19, the group started the process of closing down/winding up of its wholly owned step down subsidiary, M/s Balmer Lawrie
(UK) Limited (BLUK). This process of winding up has been completed in the current financial year and the company had been struck off by the Registrar
of Companies at UK on 21.09.2021 and finally dissolved on 28.09.2021.

Part - B - Associates and Joint Ventures

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
(Partner)
Membership No: 306354

Place : Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2022

NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sandip Das

Director
( DIN:08217697)

Shilpa Shashikant
Patwardhan
Director

( DIN:07008287)

Abhishek Lahoti

Company Secretary

86




Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
CIN: L65999WB2001G0I1093759

l] ° B. S. & (jOl]]pall“ Phone : 22 82 6809

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
60, BENTINCUK STREET, 4TH FLOOR
KOLKATA - 70O 9

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF
BALMER LAWRIE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of BALMER LAWRIE
INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“the parent’),and its Subsidiary (the parent and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2022,
the Consolidated Profit and total Consolidated comprehensive Income, Consolidated changes in
equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole and in the forming our
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opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on the
Independent Audit report of the Subsidiary Company we report that:

SI. Key Audit Matters Subsidiary Company Auditor’s Response
No
1. Evaluation of uncertain tax positions | We obtained details of assessment orders to the
extent available regarding those assessments
The Subsidiary Company has tax | from which disputes are continuing and being
matters under dispute which involves | disclosed as Contingent Liability for management.
judgement to determine the possible | We involved our expertise to estimate the
outcome of these disputes. [Refer Note | possible outcome of the disputes. Our experts
No. 44 (ii)(b) of the Consolidated | considered the assessment orders and other
Financial Statements] rulings in the evaluating management’s position
on these uncertain tax positions to evaluate
whether any change was required to the
management’s position on these uncertainties.
2, Debtor’s Due for More than Three We have checked the debtor's ageing schedule

Years and Credit Balance in Sundry
Debtors Accounts (Unallocated

Receipts)

The Subsidiary Company has credit
balance in some customer accounts
across all Strategic Business Unit
(SBU'’s). The Credit balance in these
customer accounts are due to either of
the following reasons:

e Amount lying in the nature of
advance in customer account.

e Amount Credited to the Customer
account but the same could not be

tracked/linked with any sales
invoice.
e Non - reconciliation of these

balances in the absence of the
customer’s confirmation resulting
in the credit balances lying for long
periods.

of the SBU’s. The authority is regularly following
up on the realisation of the same. As is evident
from the ageing schedule dues do exists for more
than three years against which provision has
been made in the accounts.

We, during the course of our examination have
also checked the unadjusted advances from the
customer for more than three years and also the
credit balances lying in customer’s accounts of
unmatched invoices (unallocated receipts). Some
of the advances lying unadjusted for more than
three years have been written back during the
course of Audit. In some cases, the management
is in the process of reconciliation with the
respective parties and hence the process of write
back has been kept in abeyance.

It is observed that though letters seeking
confirmation are sent, the response has been
poor. Steps should be taken to get the
confirmations from customers. In addition to the
practice of seeking confirmation annually, the
Group Company should get confirmation through
the sales team on a periodical basis also. The
management has to strengthen the internal
control process of reconciling the balances of the
debtors and to adjust the unallocated receipts on
a periodical basis.
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Emphasis of Matter

i. We draw your attention to Note No 27 “Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprise” includes the sundry creditor for expenses amounting to Rs
322.57 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 322.57 Lakhs) of E&P divisions (Kolkata) of Subsidiary Company,
which are lying unpaid since long, as a matter is under litigation.

i. We draw your attention to Note No 44(viii) which explain the management’'s assessment of
the impact of uncertainties related to the COVID-19 pandemic and its consequential effects
on the business operations of the Company.

iii. We draw your attention to Note No 49 (c) which states that the reporting company ceased to
have joint control have significant influence over one of its joint venture company, M/s
Transafe Services Limited due to approval of Resolution Plan under Corporate Insolvency
Resolution process by the Hon'be National Company Law Tribunal (Kolkata Bench) vide its
order dated 09.04.2021.

iv. We draw your attention to Note no 44 (iii) which states that trade receivable, loans and
advances and deposits for which confirmations are not received from the parties are subject
to reconciliation and consequential adjustments on determination/ receipt of such
confirmation

V. We draw your attention to Note no 49 (c) regarding non accrual of Interest on loan and non-
impairment of its investments in M/s Transafe Services Limited by a joint venture Company,
M/s Balmer Lawrie - Van Leer Limited in the previous financial year 2020-21, which have no
further impact on the group consequent to the same being provided for in the current financial
year.

Our report is not modified in respect of these matters.
Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Return but does not include the

Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially mis-stated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material mis-statement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

89



Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
CIN: L65999WB2001G0I093759

Responsibility of the Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance
and cash flow of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act and
in compliance with Regulation 33 of The Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the Respective Management and the Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statement, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company and its subsidiary companies, associates and joint ventures which are companies
incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board of
Directors in terms of the requirements specified under Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
Audits associates and joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group Audits associates and joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of which we are Independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Results that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the Consolidated Financial Results may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Results.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors ‘report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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Other Matter

a)

We did not audit the Financial Statements/ Financial information of 1(One) subsidiary (which
includes 2 (Two) step down subsidiaries which have not been audited by their respective
auditors), whose Financial statements/ Financial information reflect total assets of Rs.
2,44,624.86 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2022, total revenue of Rs. 2,09,246.06 Lakhs and net
cash inflows used amounting to Rs. 1,210.03 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement. The Consolidated Financial Statement
also include the Group’s Share of net profit of Rs. 4,530.09 Lakhs for the year ended 31st
March 2022, as considered in the consolidated Financial Statement, in respect of 1(one) step
down associate & 3(Three) step down joint ventures, whose Financial Statements / Financial
information have not been audited by us. These Financial Statements / Financial information
have been audited by others whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries (including step down
subsidiaries), step down associates and step down joint ventures, and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors after
considering the requirements of Standard of Auditing (SA 600) on ‘using the work of another
auditor including materiality and the procedures performed by us as already stated above.

The Consolidated Financial Statements also include the Group’s Share of net profit/loss of Nil
for the year ended 315t March, 2022, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements,
in respect of 1(one) Step down joint ventures, whose Financial Statements / Financial
information have not been audited by us. This Financial Statements / Financial information
are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these Step down joint ventures and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid Subsidiaries, associates &
joint ventures, is based solely on such unaudited Financial Statements / Financial information.

Our Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and reports of the other auditors and the Financial Statements /Financial
information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a)

b)

c)

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have Sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Consolidated cash flow statement and the statement of changes in
equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.
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In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014

The provision of Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Government
Companies in terms of notification No GSR 463(E) dated 5t June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the
Consolidated financial position of the group its associates and joint ventures. Refer Note No
44 (ii) to its Consolidated financial statements.

i. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. During the year, the Group has transferred amount of Rs. 33.49 Lakhs to Investor Education
and Protection Fund pertaining to unpaid dividend.

As required Under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 we furnish in “Annexure B”
compliance to the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

With respect to matters specified in Paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (“The Order’/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's Report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
Partner
Membership No.:- 306354

Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 22306354AJWSXT8839
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In Conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Balmer Lawrie Investments
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022. We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary
company as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
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being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary, joint ventures and associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over
financial reporting. Though certain areas require further strengthening, it does not have any material
effect on the internal financial controls. The financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
Partner
Membership No.:- 306354
Date: 30.05.2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 22306354AJWSXT8839
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in Rupee Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note od As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 64,124.97 63,623.03
Right-of-use assets 5 12,340.48 12,749.83
Capital work-in-progress 6 1,081.24 3,210.62
Investment property 7 39.74 42.11
Other intangible assets 8 273.59 309.06
Investments accounted for using equity method 9 43,488.49 38,468.58
Financial assets
Investments 10 159.45 149.46
Loans 1 181.86 199.32
Other financial assets 12 8.53 37.28
Other non-current assets 13 1,396.33 956.05
Total non-current assets 123,094.68 119,745.34
Current Assets
Inventories 14 20,094.79 16,013.79
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 15 31,460.51 28,774.50
Cash and cash equivalents 16 4,819.49 3,595.41
Bank balances other than above 17 49,241.36 63,888.07
Loans 11 850.49 909.31
Other financial assets 12 20,911.83 12,327.03
Current tax assets (net) 28 549.71 538.22
Other current assets 13 6,569.67 6,880.34
Total current assets 134,497.85 132,926.67
Total assets 257,592.53 252,672.01
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 18 2,219.73 2,219.73
Other equity 19 109,428.88 107,577.96
Total of Equity (for shareholders of parent) 111,648.61 109,797.69
Non controlling interest 20 63,427.46 62,818.24
Total equity 175,076.07 172,615.93
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 21 8,830.46 9,330.43
Lease liability 22 1,976.85 2,113.53
Other financial liabilities 23 13.60 19.44
Provisions 24 6,992.08 5,282.51
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 25 10,873.23 9,842.10
Other non-current liabilities 26 948.84 806.64
Total non-current liabilities 29,635.06 27,394.65
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 21 646.29 203.65
Lease liability 22 743.94 869.80
Trade payables 27
(i) total outstanding dues of MSMEs 789.53 818.15
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 26,506.63 26,327.70
Other financial liabilities 23 13,304.89 13,388.19
Other current liabilities 26 6,423.26 7,864.38
Provisions 24 1,952.91 681.39
Current tax liabilities (net) 28 2,513.95 2,508.18
Total current liabilities 52,881.40 52,661.43
Total equity and liabilities 257,592.53 252,672.01
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-3
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 1-52
As per our report of even date.
For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
FRN: 323734E
Sandip Das Shilpa Shashikant Abhishek Lahoti
Patwardhan
Sudhanshu Sen, FCA
(Partner) Director Director Company Secretary

Membership No: 306354

Place : Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2022

( DIN:08217697)

( DIN:07008287)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in rupee lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Note
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations
Interest income 29 589.23 764.09
Sale of goods and services 30 205,487.02 152,856.45
Total revenue from operations 206,076.25 153,620.54
Other income 31 4,474.94 7.653.79
Total income 210.551.19 161.274.33
Expenses:
Finance costs 32 1.358.94 1.191.58
Fees and commission expenses 33 350.84 352.52
Impairment on financial instruments 34 1.647.72 3,062.58
Cost of material consumed and services rendered 35 142.681.45 98.280.91
Purchase of stock-in-trade 36 1.276.51 359.93
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 37 (468.74) 34.03
Employee benefits expenses 38 22,777.45 21,855.37
Depreciation and amortisation 39 5.579.23 5.502.28
Other expenses 40 21.229.08 17.670.04
Total expenses 196.432.48 148.309.24
Share of profit/loss of Joint Venture accounted for usina eauitv method 4.530.09 3.270.20
Profit before tax 18,648.80 16,235.30
Tax expense 41
Current tax 4,687.41 3,502.38
Deferred tax 165.00 667.22
Total tax expenses 4.852.41 4.169.60
Net Profit/(loss) for the year 13,796.39 12,065.70
Profit/(Loss) for the vear -attributable to owners of the parent 8,851.69 7,972.59
Profit/(Loss) for the vear -attributable to non controlling interest 4,944.70 4,093.10
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
A'i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (1,078.82) (18.40)
i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 271.52 4.63
B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
C Other Comprehensive Income of joint ventures aand associates (net) 46.48 (40.70)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (760.82) (54.47)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - attributable to owners of the parent (470.19) (33.66)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year -attributable to non controlling interest
P (loss) v 9 (290.63) (20.81)
Total comprehensive income for the year 13,035.57 12,011.23
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - attributable to owners of the parent 8,381.51 7,938.93
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year -attributable to non controlling interest 4,654.06 4,072.29
13,035.57 12,011.22
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 42
Basic (Rs.) 39.88 35.92
Diluted (Rs.) 39.88 35.92
For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited
FRN: 323734E
Sandip Das Shilpa Shashikant Abhishek Lahoti
Sudhanshu Sen, FCA Patwardhan
(Partner) Director Director Company Secretary

Membership No: 306354

Place : Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2022

( DIN:08217697)

( DIN:07008287)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in rupee lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Write off/provision for doubtful trade receivables (net)
Write off/provision for inventories (net)
Other write off/provision (net)
(Gain)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)
(Gain)/ Loss on fair valuation of Investments (net)
Interest income
Dividend Income
Finance costs

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in non current assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in other short term financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in long term provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in short term provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities

Cash flow generated from operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net c